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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Global International
Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), I am delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 ("FY2018").

During FY2018, the local and global economic environment remained
challenging and volatile with property prices in Hong Kong reached its
record high in July 2018 followed by a downside correction from August
2018. During the year, Hong Kong also experienced for the first time in a
decade the increase in banks’ prime lending rates. The macroeconomic
headwind exerted increasing pressure to our mortgage business.

On the other hand, the vibrant market force in the property market
during the first half of 2018 leading to increase demand for property
refinancing. Benefiting from such increase in demand, the Group has
channelled more resources on marketing activities to uphold its brand
recognition within the increasingly competitive money lending market.
The Group has also reinforced its credit policy and taken steps to refine its
loan portfolio mix along with portfolio growth.

Our Group has demonstrated the underlying health of our business
and the successful periodic measures adopted amid macroeconomic
headwind. The Group achieved a growth in revenue by HK$20.8 million
or 20.19% to HK$124.3 million as compared to HK$103.5 million in the prior
year with a growth in average month-end loan portfolio by HK$154.2
million or 20.5% to HK$907.9 million as compared to HK$753.7 million in
prior year.

As a money lender focusing on mortgage financing, any change in the
property market and interest rate cycle is vital to our business. While there
were expectations that the property market in Hong Kong is entering an
adjustment phase since its downside correction in August 2018, there
are recent signs of rebound in the property prices and the slowdown in
the pace of US interest rate rises could also bring positive impacts to the
market.

With the downside risks in current economic condition persist, such as
the continuous global trade tensions and the potential implementation
of vacancy tax by local government, we believe that the property market
and global economic outlook remain less predictable in 2019. The Group
has always been focusing on reinforcing its risk management policy and
be proactive in adopting timely measures to balance our risk and return
in the long run.
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I ' would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to all the senior
management and staff of the Group for their commitment and
contributions in upholding our service quality. | remain deeply grateful to
my fellow Board members for their invaluable advice and contributions
to the Group's direction of development and corporate governance. | also
wish to offer sincere thanks to our customers, shareholders and business
partners for their continuing loyalty and trust. We will continue with
our endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create value for our
shareholders.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share.

Wang Yao
Chairman of the Board

27 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business focusing
primarily on providing short-term and long-term property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

During the year ended 31 December 2018 ("FY2018"), the property
market in Hong Kong experienced up and down phases with property
prices reaching their peak in July 2018, followed by a downside correction
since then. With the appreciation in value on properties during the
first half of FY2018 and the volatile economic conditions, demand on
mortgage refinancing and short-term financing from non-bank money
lenders remained strong during the year. The Group has offered more
competitive interest rates to customers with better credit quality and
devoted more resources in marketing campaigns in order to further
develop and expand its loan portfolio. Benefiting from the increasing
demand and successful marketing strategy, the total amount of new
loans granted increased by HK$337.2 million or 84.7% to HK$735.5 million
during FY2018 as compared to HK$398.3 million during the year ended
31 December 2017 (“FY2017"). The gross loans receivable as a result
increased from HK$782.4 million as at 31 December 2017 to HK$992.2
million as at 31 December 2018 and interest income increased by
HK$20.8 million or 20.1% from HKS$103.5 million in FY2017 to HK$124.3
million in FY2018.

E 301

AEERBEEBEMNF 1SERBEARINE
AIBUBERER T HREHEEHEERY
ERBER -

HE-_Z—-\F+ZA=+—HLFE(=
- N\FHBRFE])  EEMETEEL S
FEE] MEBRE_ZT—NFLtAEIH
JEIE - BER AL - EE T — \F BT
ELETEMEBEAERMSERENES  F
REIERITHREANZBBERENTHRES
KRR - AEBEAEEERRITNERR
HEARFHINMNE  WEMSHEREETIE
AEZHER  LWE—PEREKIEREEHA
G XBENAEERMNEBREKINTISHRE
R R B \FYRFERHOFTEER
BEEBRNEE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HL
FE(ZZE—CEFHMBFE]) /93983000008
JT + 38 HN337,200,000 7% JT 3% 84.7% & 735,500,000
BT -EBREFRBBEH-_ZT—ttF+ A
=+ — HH 7824000008 LiEE — T — \F
+ = A =-+—H# 992,200,000 7t » M &8 UK
ABZZE —EF 8 B E /103,500,000 7 7T 18
H120,800,00078 7L 8% 201 % & — T — N F K F
JE 9 124,300,000 % 7T, ©



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DA (&)

In order to uphold and promote its brand recognition within the
increasingly competitive money lending industry, the Group continued
to deploy various advertising and marketing channels and sponsored
various live concerts, including <Taichi Mania Symphonic Live 2018>
and <Sam and Tam Happy Together Live Concert Part II>, to reward
customers’support with free concert tickets.

During the year, the Group also recorded an additional gain from the
recovery of a previously impaired loan and interest receivables of HK$9.0
million as a result of a favorable judgement given by the High Court of
Hong Kong concerning the validity of a mortgage provided to the Group
by its customer.

Notwithstanding the decrease in interest income from the convertible
promissory note issued by Quark Finance Group (the “Note”) upon its
full redemption in September 2017, counting on the increase in interest
income from the Group’s money lending business and the additional
gain from the recovery of the previously impaired loan and interest
receivables, the Group recorded an increase in profit attributable to
shareholders by HK$5.4 million or 8.6% from HK$63.0 million in FY2017 to
HK$68.4 million in FY2018.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

For the first time in a decade, banks in Hong Kong raised the prime
lending rates by 12.5 basis points in September 2018 following the
footsteps of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and the US Federal
Reserve. Such interest rate move, together with the economic instability
brought by the continuous Sino-US tension, exerted pressure on the
local property market. According to the Rating and Valuation Department
of the Hong Kong government, property price index of the private
domestic sector in Hong Kong experienced a decline of approximately
9% in 5 months from its peak in July 2018. Considering the decrease in
property price will impact the Group’s collateral value and increase the
credit risk thereof, the Group has adopted timely measures to adjust its
credit and pricing policy in the second half of the year to cope with such
challenging and changing market conditions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
For FY2018, the Group’s interest income from its money lending business

was HKS$124.3 million, representing an increase of HK$20.8 million or
20.1% from interest income of HK$103.5 million for FY2017. Such increase
was a result of the increase in average month-end balance of mortgage
loans receivable. The average month-end balance of aggregate mortgage
loans receivable increased by HK$150.1 million or 20.0% from HK$750.9
million for FY2017 to HK$901.0 million for FY2018.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses incurred by the Group mainly comprised

employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing expenses, legal
and professional fees, operating lease of land and buildings and other
administrative expenses. These expenses, which constitute 27.3%
and 29.0% of the total revenue for FY2018 and FY2017, respectively,
increased from HKS$30.0 million in FY2017 to HK$33.9 million in FY2018,
representing an increase of HK$3.9 million or 13.0%.

Employee benefit expenses increased slightly by HK$0.4 million or 3.4%
from HK$11.9 million in FY2017 to HK$12.3 million in FY2018.

Advertising and marketing expenses increased by HK$2.7 million or 34.6%
from HK$7.8 million in FY2017 to HK$10.5 million in FY2018. The increase
in advertising and marketing expenses in FY2018 was mainly due to more
resources being devoted on television advertising to promote business
during the year.

Excluding employee benefit expenses and advertising and marketing
expenses mentioned above, administrative expenses increased by HK$0.8
million or 7.8% from HK$10.3 million in FY2017 to HK$11.1 million in
FY2018. These expenses were comprised mainly legal and professional
fees of HK$1.8 million (FY2017: HKS$1.8 million); operating lease of land
and buildings of HK$4.0 million (FY2017: HK$4.0 million); auditor's
remuneration of HK$1.7 million (FY2017: HKS1.6 million); depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of HK$0.6 million (FY2017: HK$0.4 million);
and other administrative expenses of HK$3.0 million (FY2017: HK$2.4
million).
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Reversal of Impairment losses - net
Reversal of impairment losses represents the reversal of provision for

impairment assessment on loans receivable and interest receivables
credited to profit or loss during the year.

The reversal of impairment losses on loans receivable and interest
receivables of HK$9.7 million in FY2018 was measured based on the
expected credit loss model as required under HKFRS 9. The reversal of
impairment losses was mainly attributable to the recovery of previously
impaired loans receivable and interest receivables of HK$9.0 million as
a result of a favourable judgement given by the High Court of Hong
Kong concerning the validity of a mortgage provided to the Group by its
customer.

Finance (costs)/income - net
Net finance (costs)/income changed from a net finance income of

HK$14.9 million in FY2017 to a net finance cost of HK$12.5 million in
FY2018. The change in position was primarily due to the redemption of
the Note in September 2017 and therefore interest income from the Note
decreased from HK$22.4 million to nil in FY2018. Netting off the impact
from the Note and the loan from the ultimate holding company for
financing the Note, interest expenses on bank and other borrowings and
loans from a related company increased by HK$3.6 million or 40.4% from
HK$8.9 million in FY2017 to HK$12.5 million in FY2018 due to increase
in average borrowings for financing the growth of the Group’s loan
portfolio.

Net interest margin
Net interest margin during the year refers to the interest income in

respect of the Group’s mortgage loans and personal loans less the net
finance costs in respect of bank and other borrowings and loans from
a related company, divided by the average of month-end gross loans
receivable balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

Net interest margin decreased slightly from 12.4% for FY2017 to 12.3% for
FY2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Income tax expenses
The Group's effective tax rate increased from 14.9% for FY2017 to 21.9%

for FY2018. The increase in the effective tax rate was mainly due to under-
provision of income tax of HK$4.5 million in prior years.

Such under-provision of income tax was mainly relating to the tax
enquiries issued by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
disagreeing with certain interest income received by the Company during
the years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17 being claimed as capital
and offshore in nature. With a view of probable outflow of resources, a tax
provision of HK$4.5 million in respect of the tax enquiries was provided in
FY2018.

Profit and total comprehensive income
As a result of the foregoing, the Group's profit and total comprehensive

income for FY2018 was HK$68.4 million, representing an increase of
HK$5.4 million or 8.6% from profit and total comprehensive income
of HK$63.0 million for FY2017. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in average month-end loan portfolio and the recovery of
previously impaired loans receivable and interest receivables.

OUTLOOK

Recently, there are signs of rebound on the property market in terms of
both price and transaction volume. With both the upside and downside
factors surrounding, such as the persistent imbalance of land demand-
supply and the anticipation of slowing down the pace of interest hikes
from the US Federal Reserve on one hand, and the ongoing Sino-US
trade tensions and the slowdown of China’s economy on the other
hand, the future property market and local economy remain volatile and
unpredictable.

Although the recent interest rate hike has increased the funding pressure
of the Group, the tightening of fund in capital market is expected to bring
demand on funding from non-banking money lenders.

With the challenges and opportunities ahead, the Group strives to
reinforce its risk management and to strengthen the quality of the
Group’s loan portfolio with a focus to improve overall loan-to-value ratio
and to reduce the loan portfolio from high risk customers. The Group
will also strengthen its capital management and pricing policy to strike a
balance between risk and return and to uphold its profitability.

Although the Group does not have any detailed plans for material
investments, capital assets or launching new products in a large scale
currently, it will continue to improve its existing products and services to
enhance customer experience.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During FY2018, the Group’s operational and capital requirements were
financed principally through retained earnings, loans from a bank and
independent third party licensed money lenders and loans from a related
company.

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operation, the
Group's future operations and capital requirements will be mainly
financed through loans from banks and other independent third party
licensed money lenders, retained earnings and share capital. The Group
will also actively look for diversified financing resources in the coming
year. There were no significant commitments for capital expenditure as at
31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
amounted to HK$69.5 million, representing an increase of HK$51.3 million
as compared to the position as at 31 December 2017. The increase was
mainly attributable to additional financing during FY2018.

As at 31 December 2018, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$296.9 million and loans from a related company
amounted to HK$50.0 million, representing an increase of HK$201.5
million and HKS$50.0 million, respectively as compared to the position
as at 31 December 2017. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in the Group's loan portfolio which led to higher financing
needs.

As at 31 December 2018, all interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
were repayable on demand and except for other borrowings of
HK$50.0 million which bear interest at a fixed rate, all interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings bear interest at variable rates. Except for
bank borrowings of HK$12.0 million which were unsecured, all bank
borrowings were secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans
receivable of a subsidiary of the Group; (i) a floating charge on certain
bank accounts of a subsidiary of the Group; and (iii) a corporate guarantee
executed by the Company. Other borrowings amounted to HK$234.9
million were secured by (i) certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary of
the Group by customers for securing loans receivable; and (ii) a corporate
guarantee executed by the Company. Loans from a related company
were unsecured, repayable on demand and bear interest at a fixed rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Group’s
borrowing facilities were subject to any covenants relating to financial
ratio requirements or any material covenants that restrict the Group from
undertaking additional debt or equity financing. As at 31 December 2018,
the unutilised facility available to the Group for drawdown amounted to
approximately HK$115.1 million (2017: HK$635.6 million).

Current ratio
The Group’s current ratio decreased from 5.6 times as at 31 December

2017 to 2.1 times as at 31 December 2018.

Gearing ratio
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio, which was calculated

by dividing net debts (being the total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposit) by total equity, was 0.37 as compared
t0 0.11, the position as at 31 December 2017.

Return on total assets and return on equity
The return on total assets decreased from 7.9% as at 31 December 2017

to 6.2% at 31 December 2018. The return on equity increased from 9.0%
as at 31 December 2017 to 9.2% at 31 December 2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DA (&)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operation, financial conditions, operational results or growth
prospects are affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as outlined
below. These factors are not exhaustive and there may be other risks in
addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could become material in the future.

Financial risk
Financial risk factors include cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,

credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors
and the respective risk management measures are elaborated in Note
3.1 "Financial risk factors” to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

Operational risk
Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate

or failed internal processes, human and system errors or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests
with every function at departmental levels. Key functions in the Group
are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority
and reporting framework. Management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be
taken.

Market risk
Performance of the Group's business will be affected by various market

factors in Hong Kong, including but not limited to economic conditions
and the overall property market conditions in Hong Kong. A downturn
in the economy and/or property market in Hong Kong may result not
only in a decline in the number of real estate transactions, which may
limit the growth of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio, but also a
decline in the value of the underlying properties in respect of the Group’s
mortgage loans, which may increase the risk of impairment of the Group’s
mortgage loan portfolio. The Group has implemented polices to carry out
continuous monitoring of the property market and the collateral value of
the underlying mortgage loan portfolio so that appropriate risk response
can be taken.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Reputational risk
The Group maintains a strong market position in the money lending

business market in Hong Kong. One of the keys to its success is its
reputation and recognition of the brand “GICL" Maintaining and
promoting brand and reputation will depend on the Group'’s marketing
efforts and service quality. If existing or potential customers lose
confidence in “GICL", or in the industry in general, because of negative
publicity, the Group's performance may be negatively impacted. To
safeguard and manage the brand, the Group strives to uphold its brand
value, corporate image, and maintain high business ethics.

Risk management
The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management

procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the
organisation and the external environment with active management
participation and effective internal control procedures in the best interest
of the Group and its shareholders. Details of its risk management system
are elaborated on pages 35 to 37 under section “Corporate Governance
Report”of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains strong and close relationships with its employees
and customers and has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and
business partners so as to ensure sustainable development.

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of the
Group and regards the personal development of its employees as highly
important. The Group (i) regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard; (i) provides a safe working environment to its employees; and
(iii) provides continuous training support to its employees in order to
drive their personal development and improve their knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work.

The Group maintains close relationship with customers to fulfill their
immediate and long-term financing needs. The Group has ongoing
communication with customers through various channels, such as the
Group's website, telephone, direct mail, marketing materials and social
media.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DA (&)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 24 full-time employees
(2017: 23). The total employee benefit expenses (including directors’
emoluments) of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 were HK$12.3 million and HK$11.9 million, respectively. The
remuneration of its employees included salaries, overtime allowance,
commission and year end discretionary bonuses. The Group remunerates
its employees mainly based on current market trend, individual
performance and experience and conduct performance appraisals on an
annual basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business activities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risks during the year ended 31 December
2018. As the impact from foreign exchange exposure was minimal, the
Directors were of the view that no hedging against foreign currency
exposure was necessary. In view of the operational needs, the Group will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time to time and
take necessary actions to minimise the exchange related risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities. As at 31 December 2017, save as the potential Hong Kong
profits tax exposures disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary
of the Group by its respective customers were pledged to secure certain
loan facilities granted to the Group. These properties were mortgaged
to the Group for securing loans receivable of HK$266.9 million (2017:
HK$80.0 million). As at 31 December 2018, certain loans receivable
and bank accounts of a subsidiary of the Group with carrying value of
HKS$136.5 million (2017: HK$90.9 million) and HK$8.7 million (2017: HK$4.8
million), respectively, were charged to a bank to secure against a loan
facility granted to the Group. Those loan facilities granted to the Group
were for the expansion of the Group’s mortgage business.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENREREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Yao ( E2£), aged 35, is the chairman and chief executive of
the Company and was appointed as Director on 20 January 2014 and
designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Wang is a
co-founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management
of the money lending business as well as strategic planning and
development of the Group. In particular, she is responsible for developing
the Group's overall business model and product portfolio as well as
formulating its advertising and marketing strategy. Ms. Wang graduated
from Macquarie University in Australia with a double bachelor’s degree
in applied finance and commerce accounting in November 2006 and
a master of applied finance, also from Macquarie University, in July
2007. Ms. Wang is the daughter of Ms. Jin. Ms. Wang is also a director of
Blossom Spring Global Limited, a company which has an interest in the
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms. Jin Xiaoqin (£ B2 ), aged 62, was appointed as Director on 9 April
2014 and designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Jin is a
co-founder of the Group and an experienced property investor. Between
July 2006 and July 2008 she was the director of a privately held company
in Hong Kong which, through its subsidiaries, was engaged in motorcycle
manufacturing and trading business in the PRC. She is responsible for
the overall management of the Group’s business and operations and
participating in monitoring of the Group’s treasury functions, including
the allocation of funds for the purpose of running the Group's daily
business operation. Ms. Jin is the mother of Ms. Wang.

Mr. Ng Yiu Lun ({E#1& 5% 4 ), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 July 2018. Mr. Ng joined the Group in February 2009 and
has been serving as the senior credit manager of the Group. Mr. Ng has
over 10 years of experience in money lending business and is mainly
responsible for managing the Group's business operation with a focus on
credit and risk management functions.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREEE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (R B X), aged 54, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 22
November 2014. She has about 30 years of experience in professional
accounting and corporate finance in Hong Kong, the PRC, the United
States and Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified public accountant in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. She is currently a director of Cosmos CPA Limited.
She received her Doctor of Business Administration Degree from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Juris Doctor Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and
Financial Laws from The University of Hong Kong, Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master
of Professional Accounting Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master of Science in Global Finance from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and Leonard N. Stern School of
Business of New York University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-
executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (stock code: 571) and Lion
Rock Group Limited (formerly known as “1010 Printing Group Limited”)
(stock code: 1127), all being listed companies in Hong Kong. She was a
non-executive director of Precision Tsugami (China) Corporation Limited
(stock code: 1651), which is a listed company in Hong Kong, from 12
December 2016 to 20 August 2018. She was an independent non-
executive director of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (which was
previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and delisted
on 18 August 2017) from February 2004 to August 2017.

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis (FE £ f#), aged 42, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November
2014. Mr. Tang was called to the Bar of Hong Kong in the High Court
of Hong Kong in December 2001 and since then has been a practising
barrister and a member of the Hong Kong Bar Association. Mr. Tang
graduated from the University of Toronto in June 1998 with a bachelor
of applied science major in computer engineering. He obtained the
postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in July 2000 and the postgraduate certificate
in laws from The University of Hong Kong in June 2001. He was also an
independent non-executive director of PanAsialum Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2078), which is a listed company in Hong Kong, from
21 March 2016 to 20 March 2017.

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (3 #83), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2016.
Mr. Man is currently the managing director of the investment banking
department of Guosen Securities (HK) Capital Co., Ltd.. Mr. Man has over
10 years of experience in the corporate finance field. Mr. Man obtained
a Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration from Simon Fraser
University, Canada in October 1993. He has been an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2000 and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since September 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yip Lee Ying (E &), aged 35, joined the Group in February 2016
as chief financial officer and has also been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Yip is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial management, internal control, company secretarial
and corporate finance matters. Ms. Yip has over 10 years of experience in
professional accounting and financial advisory services. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Yip has worked at Deloitte Hong Kong from February
2007 to January 2016 and her last position held was Associate Director at
Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Yip became a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2010.
She holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance
and a Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management from the
University of New South Wales.

Ms. Chan Mei Chun (R 3£ ¥), aged 40, joined the Group in February
2009 as senior relationship manager and is responsible for management
of customer relationships.
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Corporate Governance Report

EERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Relevant Period").
The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its business and Shareholders to enable them to evaluate how the
principles of corporate governance have been applied. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a high quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions as
set out under the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the Relevant
Period, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions except for
the following deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and the chief
executive should be segregated and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Company does not have a separate
chairman and chief executive and Ms. Wang Yao currently performs these
two roles. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive in the same position has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable
by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

In light of this situation, the Directors consider that the aforementioned
does not have any material impact on the corporate governance of the
Company during the Relevant Period.

The Directors will carry out a regular review on the Company’s corporate

governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition
The Board currently comprises six Directors, being three executive

Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a variety
and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business, finance,
investment and legal profession. The current composition of the Board is
as follows:

Directors

5=

Executive Directors:
HITES:

Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman)
FTHEZE(EE)

% E/ﬁ%& =] (ma)

EEE

EEEXE
EREAMMABERER  D=ANTER

R=ZBB\IUIFATESE  REREZHNT
BRm k&R REG BX ¢/ RE

RERBHE -EFSREXBIIFOT -

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEEHRERK

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

REZEGXRE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

HHEZEEKRE

Mr. Ng Yiu Lun
thigfe s £

Ms. Jin Xiaogin
TREER+

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Chairman of the Audit Committee

BRZESLRE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEZEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee

REZBEKE

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

MR e HHEZE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

e

Member of the Audit Committee
BZZBEEKE

Member of the Nomination Committee

REEZEEKE

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FEREREL

Member of the Audit Committee
BiZLZBEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEZEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee

REBEZEEKE

21



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (E)

Save for Ms. Wang Yao who is the daughter of Ms. Jin Xiaogin and Ms.
Jin Xiaogin who is the mother of Ms. Wang Yao, the Directors have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

The Code Provisions require directors to disclose to the issuer the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments as well as the nature of such companies
or organisations and the time involved in such offices. Each Director
has agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of
a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board, and
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Dr. Ng Lai
Man, Carmen who is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong
Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, is regarded as an appropriate person to fulfill this requirement.
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The Board meets regularly at least four times a year. During the year, the
Board has held four board meetings, and the annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 1 June 2018. The attendance of each Director
at these meetings are stated as follows:

Members of the Board

ExglB8

Executive Directors:

HITESE:

Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive of the Board)
TREZT(EFSFERAEH)

Mr.Ng Yiu Lun (appointed on 30 July 2018)
mRmEE(RZE—N\FLtA=THEZT)

Ms. Jin Xiaogin

CEEEL 4

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHITES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

SR A

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EEmEE
Note:

(i) Refers to the number of board meetings and general meetings held during his tenure.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable to stakeholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review corporate and
financial policies and the oversight of the management of the Group’s
business and affairs.

The management, consisting of the executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors
and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and
make financial and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear
directions as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

meetings regularly held

EEER®RE (A)
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—NERA-HETTRRBFAE -REF
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Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board

HERE EE2EH HERE
EEETRE BRERAEETRE
4/4 1/1
1/20 N/ARE A0
2/4 0N
4/4 0N
4/4 1
4/4 1/1

GEE
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Group will arrange for,
and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to help them refresh their knowledge, skills
and understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills
and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant
statutes, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The
Company will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year, all the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development, by attending external training or seminars,
attending in-house training and/or reading materials on various topics
covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, which ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors
have provided records of training to the Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee include a nomination
procedure specifying the process and criteria for selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorships of the Company.

Each of our executive Directors, has entered into a service agreement
with the Company regarding the appointment as an executive Director
for a term of three years and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”). Each of the service
agreement is renewable automatically upon the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, unless terminated by not less than six
months written notice from either party.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors, has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years and shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles, unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The annual
remuneration payable by the Company to each of our independent
non-executive Directors is HK$240,000 according to the respective letter
of appointment.
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Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Directors shall have power at
any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be a Director,
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

Furthermore, pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Company’s Code”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standards as stated in the Model Code and the
Company’s Code throughout the Relevant Period.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are
available to Shareholders upon request.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “"Audit Committee”) of the Company was
established on 22 November 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of
the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

() topropose the appointment or removal of the external auditors and
the effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) to discuss with the external auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit work prior to commencement of the audit work;

(i) to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
procedures;

(iv) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

(v) to review the Company'’s financial information and disclosure
thereof, and to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in the reports and accounts;

(vi) to review and supervise the Group's financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems and their implementation;
and

(vii) to review the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
financial reporting improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
consisted of Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick and
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, two meetings of the
Audit Committee were held (with the attendance of the Company’s
external auditor in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference), and all members had attended these
meetings with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREZEEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (Chairman of Audit Committee)
REXNEL (FRZESTE)

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

MBS

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EEREE
During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following work:

1. Reviewed the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2017, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

2. Reviewed the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2018, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

3. considered and recommended to the Board the auditors’ fee and
the re-appointment of the Company’s independent external auditor;
and

4. reviewed the internal control review report prepared by Corporate
Governance Professionals Limited (formerly known as Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited) and the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management system of the Group.
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Auditor’s remuneration
The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering

the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect to our Company. PricewaterhouseCoopers is the
external auditor of the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the external auditor received the following remuneration for audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group:

¥ B 1Y 3 BN
ARBEZZEGABEEZRRERENBEL
RAINSRZELED - A KBRS R B B 1T HO
TFEZRBEE - ERAMEEZBESE S

HARBEBRBEERTNEE - BRRUKE
S ERARARBIINEZERE - HE-T
—N\F+ZA=+—BILFE  SMNEREMR®
RHEZMIERZRS T AK B MKE S
LI

HK$’000
THET

Audit services EZIRTE
Non-audit services IEFNZ RS
Interim review services Hh HA S B AR 75
Taxation services TR R
Total 4Ast

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company was established on 22 November 2014 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code Provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

() to make recommendations to the Board on our policy and structure
for all Directors’and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) toreview and approve management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to consider and make recommendations to our Board on the
remuneration packages and overall benefits paid to our Directors
and senior management;

(iv) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of

office or appointment; and

(v) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors: Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen,
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis and Ms. Wang Yao. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two meetings of the

Remuneration Committee were held and all members had attended the
meeting with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMESERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES:

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
MR ELE (FWEEET/E)

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FRERmEL

Executive Director:
HITES:

Ms. Wang Yao
EHLL

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management;

2. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy;

3. reviewed and recommended to the Board the terms of letter of
appointment of independent non-executive directors; and

4. reviewed and recommended to the Board the terms of the service
contract of an executive director.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (as described under the section
“Directors and Senior Management”) by band for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration band

FMER

HKS 1 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company was established on 22 November 2014 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code Provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst other
things:

()  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement our corporate strategy;

(i) toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(iv) to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors: Ms. Wang Yao, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu
Kwong, Nick and Mr. Tang, Warren Louis. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Ms. Wang Yao.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held and all members had attended the
meeting with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEERE

Executive Director:
HITES:
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman of Nomination Committee)

IRLT(HEEZRETE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

B i

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FREmEL

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed the following
work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. discussed and recommended to the Board the appointment of an
executive Director;

3. discussed and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Directors;

4. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company; and

5. reviewed the diversity policy and nomination policy adopted.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) to
govern the criteria, procedures and process of nomination of Directors.
The Nomination Policy sets out, inter alia, the selection criteria, the
evaluation and procedures in nominating candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as Directors of the Company for ensuring that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Group's business.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors
When identifying, assessing and recommending suitable candidates for

directorship for the Board's consideration, the Nomination Committee
will have regard to, but without limitation, the following criteria:

- skills, competence, experience, expertise, professional and
educational qualifications, background and personal qualities of the
candidate that will best complement the effectiveness and current
composition of the Board;

- capability of the candidate to devote the necessary, sufficient time
and commitment to carry out his duties. In this regard, the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations,
other executive appointments or other significant commitments
will be considered:;

- potential conflicts of interest and assessment of the independence
of the candidate; and

- other factors as the Nomination Committee may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director ("INED"), his or her independence shall be assessed
in accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in the
Listing Rules. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider whether
he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filling the office of an INED
with such qualifications or expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedure and process
The Nomination Policy includes the following procedure and process in

respect of the nomination of Directors, subject to the provisions of the
Company'’s Articles:

- any member of the nomination committee or the Board may
invite and nominate suitable candidates; and external recruitment
agencies may be engaged to assist in identifying and selecting
suitable candidates, if considered necessary;

the Nomination Committee shall evaluate the nomination based on
criteria set under the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy
and make recommendation to the Board, including the terms and
conditions of the appointment, for its consideration and approval;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance and make recommendations to the
Board and/or the shareholders for consideration in connection with
his/her re-election at general meetings; and

- for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review from time to time to ensure
that it continues to be relevant to the needs of the Company and reflects
current regulatory requirements and good governance practice.

ERERKRE (&)

REEFRBE
RABRBEUTAUEFRENEZF RBE -
{BRMFA A RARRBIRTE -

- REZEEAEZgNEMAKEITRE
REEGENIREAN  MRBBVE - AJHE
SEINEL AR BE B 1 BY RO BB B A B A IR
EA

- REZESHREBERABRRAEZEEZT
EBRMENZEFGERE  AR/EFE
REERE BRZEMERRGE fE
B LA

- HEENZERETEZENBLT  REZEB
SAREREANEBERMMERE XM
BRIN/RBRIBHES  AHEER
EERBERAS LEEE &

- BEMHEERRE2EARARTRRAGE
EWALME REZESR LEFE
FERIE LR E SR ARIE ANHETTRAE - JA
BEZREARTEERKNAES -

BEHEETESIES - ARG EEERA
NENTBRBHE TRREMNEEERLLR
HEVERTER

33



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (E)

BOARD DIVERSITY

With a view to enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance,
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
so that there is a strong independence element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy with measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection
of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities
essential to the Company’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board will review such
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance duties include:

() to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year, the Board has performed the corporate governance
duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting
Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner in

accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules. All Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary, for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s financial affairs. The Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 63 to 69 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing
basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this
respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material issues to the
Board.

During the year, the Group appointed Corporate Governance
Professionals Limited to independently perform internal control review of
the Group's internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control measures as recommended by Corporate Governance
Professionals Limited to enhance the internal control systems of the
Group were adopted by the Board. No significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance, control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources, staff qualifications
and experience training programs and budget of accounting and
financial reporting function. Based on the findings and recommendations
of Corporate Governance Professionals Limited, reports from the Group’s
management as well as the comments of the Audit Committee, and the
Board considered the internal control and risk management systems
effective and adequate.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework
The Group has established its enterprise risk management framework

in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective internal controls are maintained, management is
responsible for designing and implementing an internal control system
to manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks are
identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments. The Group’s risk
management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk Management
- Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and management to
manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board receives regular
reports through the Audit Committee that oversights risk management
and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

The principal risks and relevant measures taken by the Group is set out on

pages 14 to 15 under the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”

of this annual report.

Our Risk Control Mechanism
The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate governance

structure with operational management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk management monitoring
carried out by the finance team and independent internal audit
outsourced to and conducted by Corporate Governance Professionals
Limited. The Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each
risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of occurrence
and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register is updated
by management as the risk owners with addition of new risks and/or
removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after the annual
risk evaluation has been performed. This review process can ensure that
the Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to
those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-up
action in an efficient manner.
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Risk management activities of the Group are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management
meeting is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.
Management is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk management
with corporate goals in an effective manner.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the Group in order to
meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Inside Information
The Company has set up an information disclosure policy (the “Disclosure

Policy”) to ensure that the Company shall be in strict compliance with
the disclosure obligation of inside information, that inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such information
is efficiently and consistently made. The Company acknowledges its
obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the principles of
inside information as set forth in the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The Disclosure Policy stipulated responsibilities, guidelines and logistics in
the assessment, approval and dissemination of inside information, strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential information and established
procedures for responding to external enquires or rumours.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yip Lee Ying was appointed by the Board as the Company Secretary
of the Company in April 2016 and she is also the chief financial officer of
the Group. The Company Secretary supports the Chairman in promoting
the highest standards of corporate governance and facilitates the
effective functioning of the Board and its committees. All Directors
have direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that board procedures are
followed and for facilitating timely and appropriate information flows
among directors. Ms. Yip has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training on review of Listing Rules and other compliance
requirements during the year.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out under the section
"Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company aims to promote and maintain effective communications
with Shareholders and investors (both individuals and institutions) to
ensure that the Group's information is disseminated to Shareholders and
potential investors in a timely manner and enable them to have a clear
assessment of the enterprise performance.

Extensive information on the Group’s activities and financial position
will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports, announcements,
circulars and other corporate communications which will be sent to
Shareholders and/or published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.gicl.com.hk).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Company may distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution of dividends shall
be in accordance with the Articles.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s earnings per share; financial conditions including its liquidity
position and capital and debt level; long-term earning capacity; expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirement and future
expansion plans; Shareholders’and investors' expectation and industry’s
norm; the market sentiment and circumstances; and any other factors
that the Board considers relevant and appropriate.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
periods.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

General Meeting
The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for

communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence, their
duly appointed delegates are available to answer questions at the
Shareholders’ meetings. The auditor of the Company is also invited to
attend the Company’s annual general meeting ("AGM") and is available
to assist the Directors in addressing queries from Shareholders relating
to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and contents of the
Independent Auditor's Report. Separate resolutions are proposed at
Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.
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Notice of the AGM together with related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting, setting
out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other
relevant information. All votes of Shareholders at the general meeting
will be decided by poll, where appropriate, in accordance with Article
13.7. The Chairman will explain such rights and procedures during the
AGM before voting on the resolutions. An independent scrutineer will be
appointed to count the votes and the poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after the AGM.

Shareholders can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM”) pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles. The procedures
for the Shareholders to convene an EGM are as follows:

1. Any two or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

2. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board of the
Company signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
following address:

Principal place of business of the Company

Address: Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong

3. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may do so in the same manner which shall be held no later
than the day which falls three months after the expiration of the
said twenty-one day period, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist as a result of the failure of the directors shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to direct enquiries to the
Company

For matters in relation to the Board, Shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address: Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong
Email:  info@gic.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2111 0998

Fax: (852) 21110819

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Address: Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2153 1688

Fax: (852) 3020 5058

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Relevant Period, there has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals

at Shareholders’ meetings
To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a

Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal (the
"Proposal”) together with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 01, 23/F,
World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong in the same
manner as set out above.

The request will be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda for
the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned at the general meeting
varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Atleast 21 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval
by way of a special resolution of the Company in an EGM or

resolution of the Company in an AGM.

(b)  Atleast 14 days'notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval in
any other EGM.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HEBRERBWSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”)) is pleased to issue the Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG") Report for the year ended 31 December 2018
(“FY2018") which outlines its policies and practices in four aspects, namely
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement, with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for disclosures.

As a responsible and caring corporate citizen, the Group upholds the
principle that good business practices and corporate social responsibility
are vital for the sustainability of its success. The Board is responsible for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has established an
ESG working team to engage the management and employees across
all functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their
materiality to the Group’s business as well as the Company’s stakeholders,
through reviewing our operations and internal discussions. The Group
also recognises its responsibility to be accountable to all its stakeholders,
including clients, potential investors and shareholders, employees, non-
governmental organisations (NGOs) and local community. Understanding
the needs and expectations of the stakeholders is the key to the Group’s
success. As each stakeholder requires a different engagement approach,
the Group has established a tailor-made communication method, in
order to better meet each stakeholder’s expectations.

Scope of the Report
Unless otherwise stated, this report covers the Group’s head office and all

the operating subsidiaries of the Group.

For this year, the material ESG issues are those which have or may have a
significant impact on:

The Hong Kong mortgage loan market;
The environment or sociality now or in the future;
Qur financial performance or operations; and/or

Our stakeholders'assessment, decisions and actions.

Feedback

This report is designed to allow our stakeholders and the public to have
a more comprehensive and profound understanding of the Group's
corporate social responsibility and culture. We welcome feedback and
comments on to this report and its contents which will lead us to create
further common value. Please feel free to provide your comments by
email to info@gic.com.hk.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand our stakeholders and
engage them to ensure that improvements are implemented to our
products and services. We strongly believe that our stakeholders would
play a crucial role for sustaining the success of our business in the
challenging market.

Stakeholders Possible concerned issues

EAOFSHEBAAL

REBBBEHANE LT B a5 EREA LA
AREER  BREAIESRRSEPISE -
HPIRE  MEBEEALTERBR T MIBN
MSHERSRITENEZEREZNAS

Communication and responses

MmAERAL BENMEBER

HKEx Compliance of listing rules, timely and accurate
announcements

ERXRZR ey EWAR R KB R T A S

Government Compliance of laws and regulations, preventing tax
evasion, and social welfare

B BERER  BIIEEHR RRETE SR

Shareholders/

Investors and performance, investment returns

BRREE ERERHE  EBERBELKRR REER

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental protection,
human right

RERAR BERER  RERE  AKE

Customers Quality of loan services, repayment terms, handling
time, reasonable interest costs, privacy protection

'R EXRMBER  BRGEXR RERHE 612
PR - TLERRE

Employees Rights and benefits, employee compensation,
training and development, work hours, working
environment

& BN NRAER - BB WmB - BRI
R - TYEIRIR

Community Community environment, employment and
community development, social welfare

HE HBIRE ERAERER  HE2@EF
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Corporate governance system, business strategies

BERRE

Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
updates and announcements
gE B e FHE - BUERLRAE

Interaction and visits, government inspections, tax
returns and other information

BEERED  BRGE AR EHR LAY

Organising and participating in seminars, interviews,
shareholders'meetings, financial reports or
operation reports for investors, media and
analysts

HBE2ERKEE HERESTABEENR
WS K RRRE > RRERE
B mENEERSE

Issue of newsletters on the Group's website
ANER E AL LR
After-sales services

SRR

Trainings, interviews for employees, issuing
employee handbooks, internal memos, employee
suggestion boxes

gl HESETEA  BEREIFM - A
WEik RIEEBRAE

Developing community activities, employee
voluntary activities and community welfare
subsidies and donations

AR BEESREEA N EREF
R NI RE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to leading by example, inspiring others to strive
for environmental sustainability, and minimising our environmental
impacts from operations. We have implemented eco-friendly measures to
reduce carbon footprint in our business operations. During FY2018, there
was no material non-compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations
related to the environment.

Emission
As a provider of money lending services, the Group's operation does

not have material impacts on the environment in relation to pollutant
emissions. Nevertheless, the Group still indirectly generates greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emission through our consumption of electricity and
production of paper waste at the Group’s headquarter. Several measures
to reduce the Group’s GHG emissions have been implemented to
demonstrate the Group'’s determination of maintaining environmental
sustainability. Those measures included promoting paperless office by
usage of tablets, encouraging double-sided printing, and encouraging
employees to switch off all idle appliances.

During FY2018, the Group’s total GHG emissions was approximately 33.3
tonnes (FY2017: 35.7 tonnes) and the total GHG emission per average
employee was 1.39 tonnes (FY2017: 1.37 tonnes). The decrease in total
GHG emission was mainly due to the decrease in paper waste disposal.

Rk - HERERHRE (B)

RIBRE

AEBEBNAGER MEBEREMABREREA
FERREB) SEEURRENNTERE
RIK - RPIEHRERE G - NBRIEEEEED
BB - R—F—N\FHRFE - BB
BEERERSARNMERERIOEROEMS -

BERR

ERERRBHER  SUSRYERME - &
SENEEHRBYBEATE - AW A&
EERE AR E D ME L RE AR E
EREREB(DRERE] - ARECETZE
AR EBRERBIMNE  UEBAE
BRFHREAUSEZRORD - ZFHEEERE
ERFRER  REEARD  BE@SI L]
kB EREREMEAMAREES?

RZE—N\FHHREFE  AEBEMNEERER
ERELNBBIRNW(ZE—+FFRFE :
357/ BEEARERARBRENRER139
AE(ZF—EFHEFEE  13720F) )BF
REGHERERL I EEHREREERER
DFTER o

FY2018 FY2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
BBEE MIEE
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) FEAEREHE N (FE2)

— Electricity consumption (in tonnes) —FEE=E (LA AWEET) 29.7 30.5
Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) HEMEZRERBHN(EE?3)

— Disposal of paper waste (in tonnes) — RS (LARAWEET) 3.6 5.2
Total GHG emissions (in tonnes) BEREHEKEE (LA AMEEH) 33.3 35.7
Average number of employees FHESHAE 24 26
GHG emissions per average employee BEEAGBRERBHENRE

(in tonnes) (A AWEET) 1.39 137
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Waste Management
The Group’s operations do not produce any hazardous waste, which

includes but not limited to chemical wastes, clinical wastes and hazardous
chemicals. The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group was mainly
paper waste. Measures for reducing and recycling the waste were put in
place. We encourage double-sided printing, as well as reuse of single side
printed paper. A recycling company was engaged to collect and recycle
our paper waste regularly. In FY2018, approximately 54% of our paper
waste was recycled (FY2017: 28%). To further reduce the Group’s non-
hazardous waste, we have also purchased some electronic tablets so as
to facilitate usage of electronic document and promote paperless office.

BYEE
REBNEEYTELAERNAZEY (BHFEE
TRIMEBREFR - BEEMREZ(CENE) -
AEEELNBEZEVEIZRER B LO
WEEYEREE B - Bz B EmHE -
ARBEERE@MIENARER - HMHERE—
A [0 Y 2 A] FE HR MR K M F P RO BE AR - 1 =
T N\FHBFE  RFIH B 54%H BEARF A
EUR (ZF—EFHBRFE - 28%) ° SFE—
TRORNEENEEREY  RATEBAET
FARER - BBE M XE AN R A

W

FY2018 FY2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HMBFEE MIFE

Paper waste (in kg) R4 (A Frt) 726 936
Average number of employees FHEE SR 24 26
Paper waste per average employee (in kg) EEAMEHEE (LA FEH 30.3 36.0

Use of Resources
The Group is committed to upholding high environmental standards

in order to promote environmental friendliness. As a provider of money
lending services, the Group strives to minimise environmental impact by
reducing energy and paper consumption and encouraging recycle of
office supplies and other materials.

Energy Consumption
The electricity consumed by the Group’s head office was the largest

contributor to the greenhouse gas footprint. To reduce the Group's
carbon and energy footprints, the Group has posted some energy
conservation reminders in place. Computers and office lights are
switched off during non-business hours to minimise light pollution and
reduce energy consumption. The total electricity consumption decreased
by approximately 3% in FY2018 when compared to FY2017.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Electricity consumption (in kWh) HEE (T REE)
Average number of employees FHEEHAE

Electricity consumption per average
employee (in kWh)

Paper Usage

Efficiency in usage of paper has been promoted and communicated
to our employees. Tablets were provided to employees to encourage
reduction of usage of paper. The single-sided printings were collected
for reuse. Although paper usage increased slightly by approximately 5%
when compared with last year due to increase in business volume, the
Group has also increased its recycle percentage in order to reduce paper

waste.

Rk - HERERHRE (B)

BEASGHER (LT RE)

37,614 38,560
24 26
1,567 1,483

K

BAE A RARNOB S HEEREET RN
‘EE - TlImEB IR H - FIRE AR D A4 -
mEmEH N ARITFAREER - BE R
EREBEIBRMBEFHUMIBINA% - A&
B S B I UK D R AR & -

Paper usage (in kg) AHE (UARFE 1,576 1,503
Average number of employees FHEEHE 24 26
Paper usage per average employee (in kg) EBEAYRAEE (LA FE) 65.7 57.8

Water Consumption and Packaging Materials
As the Group's operations mainly focus on providing financial services to

customers, no water consumption or packaging material consumption
can be identified as material issue relevant to the Group's operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources
Due to the nature of our business, the Group does not have any direct

and significant impacts on the environment and natural resources in the
course of its operation. By taking the above-mentioned green initiatives,
the Group is committed to doing our part to mitigate our environmental
impact and acting in a manner that is both environmentally and socially
responsible.

FEKRERBREME
HRASRENZEETRRETRATFREAS A
AR7 - Rk E B EM KBRS TR BRI 1E
ERARBEENERER
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With the Group’s efforts in minimising its impacts on the environment,
the Group has successfully achieved the following:

Aspects Results
FHE MR

GHG emissions

Waste production

EEYRLE [T 44 49 549 HY B2 4

Energy consumption

BEIRIERE % BEJRH FE 2R A 4 3%

Paper usage

The Company is also delighted to be awarded as the Silver Member
of WWF-Hong Kong Corporate Membership Programme 2018/2019
as an acknowledgement to our continuous support to environmental
conservation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of
the Group and regards the personal development of its employees as
highly important. The Group has a set of HR management policies and
procedures in place to set out the Group'’s standard of staff recruitment,
remuneration, work periods, rest periods as well as termination of
employment and compensation matters. The Group strictly complies
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations which cover
all employment protection and benefits.
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AEBREZRIBRREZEMTENS S EX
NESIATRER

Reduced total GHG emissions by approximately 7%
BEREBEN R % 558 H AR HR R R A 4D 7%

Recycled approximately 54% of our paper waste

Reduced energy consumption by approximately 3%

Controlled the increase in total paper usage to approximately 5%
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Employment
As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 24 full-time employees

(2017: 23) which are all located in Hong Kong. The Group has a diverse
workforce in terms of gender and age, generating creative opinions and
different level of capabilities. The following table sets forth the number
and breakdown of our full-time employees as at 31 December 2018:

Rk - HERERHRE (B)

&=

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—8B KEBEER2A4
ZeBREE (T —tF:238)  HREHXE
NEE - AREETRERNRFRNZ TR
THE SETIRHEEARIENEE LAE
TREEMRED - TRFINERMANR=—F—N\F
ToA=tT—HNEBEEEA LAM

Age 30

or below

=ETHEIAT

Male 2
Sk

Female 1
%

Total 3
HEt

Remunerations of the employees of the Group are determined with
reference to the prevailing market standard as well as the competency,
qualifications and experience of individual employees. Discretionary
bonuses based on financial results of the Group as well as individual
performance will be paid to the employees as recognition of their
contribution to the Group annually. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package and promotion opportunities of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard in
order to retain talents. To increase the employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group also offer various welfare incentives to employees, including
insurance schemes, over-time allowance, various paid leaves and holiday
gifts.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies and treats
all the employees equally, and their employment, remuneration and
promotion will not be affected by their social identities such as ethnicity,
race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

Age 31
to 40 Above 40
=t+t—Z0+5 >
3 4 9
8 6 15
11 10 24

AEBREEHFM DS EREMIHTEN @R
BIwWgEn BFEREHRMET - ARESR
BREVBRERMEAARREFAREDIRBIE
A DRERSHAKBMNER - ASETE
i EENFMSTERERE YABE
AT THERFE TS RENMEFE - BIZTT
BEMNFERZ AEETAESREZHEER
RE - BRERRETE - MIDER - FBEEFHFR
HAEBA 50 B 1 an o

AEERAFSAEFHREBRE R FEFE
BEES MRENER FHEEATSXE
WENEEHNATE  MEK Bk - Bl -
TR - RE - Fi - MR - R RIE R -
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to its employees, and encourages them to achieve a
balance between work and a healthy life. Air purifiers are placed in the
workplace to improve air circulation. We take a systematic approach
to safeguard the health and safety of our employee by reducing the
likelihood of safety risks occurrence in the office so we aim at training
employee’s responsiveness to emergencies. During FY2018, there was no
instance of injury reported within our Group. The Group provides medical
insurance for employees and the coverage of insurance includes hospital
and surgical service, dental services and out-patient fees. The Group
complies with the relevant occupational health and safety laws and
regulations.

Training and Development
The Group encourages employees to participate in on-the-job

training and continuing education to create opportunities for career
development.

In order to help employees acclimatise to the volatile business
environment, the Group provides continuous updates in relation to
market and industry trends as well as updates on relevant regulations
to its employees. In addition, the Group also encourages continuous
personal development of its employees by implementing an educational
reimbursement program.

The Group also invites directors and senior management to attend
training in relation to updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance,
relevant laws and regulations so as to maintain sustainable professional
development and refresh their knowledge.

Labour Standards
The Group is committed to comply, with the Employment Ordinance

(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and associated guidelines. Every
act of employment is subject to a stringent internal review process
that involves a well-defined monitoring procedure designed to verify a
candidate’s personal information in order to avoid misrepresentation and
any form of child and forced labour. During FY2018, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations
relating to employment and labour practices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

OPERATING PRACTICES

Customer Care
There is no major procurement involved in our business, so in the supply

chain management aspect, we will focus on customer relationship
management instead. Customer care is one of the core values of the
Group. The Group is committed to provide customers with thoughtful
and consistently high standard of service and strive to treat customers
fairly at all stages of its business relationship. With a “Clients First”principal,
the Group emphasises a one-on-one personal approach to service and
provides a variety of highly flexible loan solutions to its customers.

Front-line employees are well-trained with adequate and update
knowledge on relevant regulations to ensure the services provided are
complied with all relevant regulations. The Group also acknowledges the
increasing use of social media and electronic applications, and strives
to enhance its service delivery through the development of mobile
applications and incorporating various value-added features, such
as online property valuation and online loan application, to improve
customer experience. Complaint system has been set up for customers
to address comments and complaints. Our service pledge is to follow up
and resolve complaints in a responsive manner.

Customer education is also another topic that we have been working on
as we value the well-being of our customers and the society. The Group
communicates the latest market information to customers through its
social media channels, such as news relating to fraud cases commenced
by illegal financial intermediates and tips for prevention from being
cheated, in order to increase customer’s awareness.

To reward customer’s support, the Group sponsored two live concerts
during FY2018, “Taichi Mania Symphonic Live 2018" and “Sam and Tam
Happy together Live Concert Part II', and offered free concert tickets to its
customers.
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Product Responsibility and Customer Privacy
The Group values the trust of its customers and as a provider of money

lending services, the Group has access to significant personal data of its
customer and therefore ensuring the privacy of customer information is
one of the issues the Group cares the most.

The Group is committed to the full implementation and compliance with
the Six Data Protection Principles and the requirements of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “PDPO”).
The Group has formulated a set of privacy principles regarding collection,
retention, use, security, openness and accessibility of personal information
to ensure customer information received is only for its intended purpose
and to prevent information leakage, such as:

requiring employees not to retain or disclose any confidential
information about the Group's business activities and other sensitive
confidential data to any third parties;

requiring customers to acknowledge their rights under the PDPO,
the purpose of collecting their personal data upon completion and
signing of the application forms;

ensuring that confidential personal data is not obtained through
telephone conversations; and

ensuring that customer files are kept in a locked cabinet.

Employees are also being invited and encouraged to attend the training
courses organised by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data to
increase awareness and understanding of the PDPO. The Group will
continue to monitor, review and, when necessary, update its privacy
principles and policies to ensure they are in compliance with the PDPO.

The Group also understand that our computer systems maybe prone
to hackers attack due to the increasing hacker activities, therefore, the
Group regularly conduct IT control review to update the security system.

Relevant Laws and Regulations
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory

requirements and during the Reporting Period, the Group has complied,
to the best of its knowledge, with applicable laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the business of the Group. In particular, as a
money lenders license holder, the Money Lenders Ordinance (“MLO")
constitutes a significant influence to the Group’s money lending business.

The credit approval policy and process adopted by the Group has been
designed to ensure that the Group’s business operates in accordance
with the MLO. The Group also regularly monitors, reviews and, when
necessary, updates the existing policy to ensure the money lending
business is strictly in compliance with the MLO.
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Anti-corruption and Anti-money Laundering
In order to uphold the highest ethical standards, all management and

staff of the Group are required to strictly follow the Group’s Code of
Conduct and to sign acknowledgement that they understand and agree
to the Code of Conduct adopted by the Group. With the purpose of
preventing potential bribery, extortion and fraud, the Group’s Code of
Conduct clearly states that:

Employees shall not accept gifts or other benefits that are beyond
common business hospitality, or the head of department or the
chief executive shall be consulted.

Under no circumstances should an employee offer bribes to any
person or company for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business.

Employees should always avoid any situation involving a conflict,
or that could be perceived by others as a conflict, between
their personal interests, or those of their close relatives, and the
performance of their official duties.

If a potential conflict exists, employees should make prompt and full
disclosure to the management.

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing, the
Group follows the “Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders”issued by the Company Registry and has incorporated policies
and procedures in our operation and credit guidelines and policies, which
include procedures for customer due diligence, reporting of suspicious
transactions, record-keeping, and staff training. The Group's policies and
procedures in respect of prevention and detection of money laundering
and terrorist financing activities include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Check loan applicants against the sanctioned countries, firms,
entities and individuals from database provided by professional
compliance firm.

Conduct customer due diligence based on result of risk assessment
on each potential customer.

Rk - HERERHRE (B)

REBRRERE
RTHFBESBEREE AEEAMBEERE
RETHEEKRETAKRENTATA LR
ERANFERYRABAERERANITATA -
BB RNFR ARENTR
ST RIBRREAR TE -

BT AERIBH - REBRFHENE
meEMEA - RBAE AP EE B
MER -

EEMABERT - BTGB EMA LTS
DT FEABUS HARE T -

BTG E S EMRAAARTERE
TATEBEE A M RIS B R R E A A L2
TR @ -

WAEHRER BTRAEAERES
EHE -

BOLEREAERBERBRHS FEEED K
SEE T AR EMERMHCREREATER
RENBHERECEREDLKEEZER
EEESIRBEPSIABBRENIESF - &
HEEEFERELS REARRS  HHEL
B M B TIRIIBRNER - A L REAR
RERELRMD TEREETDOBRRMEFERE
BARRRIATRIA

BERBFAEEXSRAAARHEE
EREZHHBEER - B ' RER A
THRRE -

ERHEBAERPFNRARMGEEREETS
ETEBAST -

51



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIB - HERERRE (E)

Carry out know-your-client procedures by verifying the applicant’s
identity using reliable and independent source documents.

All loan repayments from customers are made by cheque, bank
transfer or autopay with their own bank accounts.

The Group will report any suspicious transactions to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit using the standard form or the e-channel
"STREAMS".

The Group maintains all essential information of our customers, with
the PDPO.

The Group encourages and supports its employees to maximise
their potential and to seek practical and professional training,
when available, on matters related and relevant to their roles and
responsibilities, the money lending business and current legislation
and practices.

During FY2018, the Group did not identify any non-compliance related to
anti-corruption and anti-money laundering.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to honoring its corporate social responsibility for
the benefit of the society by participating in a variety of charitable events
and cultivating the concept of corporate social responsibility throughout
the organisation. The Group participates in a variety of charitable events
every year and the followings summarised the Group's contribution
during the year:
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Made donations and participated in the flag sale activities organised
by the Urban Peacemaker Evangelistic Fellowship.

Participated in the elderly and underprivileged families visiting
activities organised by the Urban Peacemaker Evangelist Fellowship.

Made donations to support S.KH. St. Christopher's Home, World
Wide Fund for Nature Hong Kong, Po Leung Kuk and CUHK Alumni
Charity Foundation.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) presents their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 70.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per ordinary share, totalling HK$12,000,000 payable to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 13 June 2019. The proposed final dividend will be paid on or
about Friday, 28 June 2019 following approval at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends was made by the Company.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$77,000 (2017: HK$73,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2018 available

for distribution to Shareholders amounted to HK$573,154,000 (2017:
HK$579,276,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

No new shares or debentures were issued by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Details of the share capital of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
approved pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 22 November 2014 and its refreshment of the scheme mandate limit
was approved at an extraordinary general meeting held on 11 November
2015. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the Eligible
Participants (defined in paragraph below) have made or may make to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
with the opportunity to own a personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivating the Eligible Participants and/or attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining on-going relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group.
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The Directors (which include a duly authorised committee thereof) may,
at its absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants (“Eligible Participants”), to take up options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company
(“Shares”):

() any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full-time or part-time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any interest (“Invested Entity”);

(i) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(i) any corporation wholly-owned by any person mentioned in clause (i)
above.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options available to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed the Scheme
Mandate Limit (i.e. 10% of the Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015
being the date of approval of the refreshed limit by the Shareholders).
The Company had 400,000,000 Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015,
the refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit allows the Company to issue under
the Share Option Scheme a maximum of 40,000,000 Shares, representing
10% of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report.

Notwithstanding the above, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all Options granted to an Eligible Participant (including exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time, unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the board of directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option. No further options may be granted more
than 10 years after 22 November 2014.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 22 November 2014, the date on which the Share Option Scheme
was adopted.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme (the
“Subscription Price”) shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a Business Day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a share.

For the purpose of calculating the Subscription Price, where the Company
has been listed for less than five Business Days, the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the

option.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive)

Mr.Ng Yiu Lun (appointed on 30 July 2018)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr.Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, Mr. Ng Yiu Lun, being appointed as
executive Director by the Board on 30 July 2018, will hold office until the
next general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, Ms. Jin Xiaogin and Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis shall retire from office by rotation at the next annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company regarding her appointment as executive Director for a term
of three years and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by not
less than six months written notice or otherwise in accordance with the
service agreement.

None of the executive Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract that is not determinable by the Company within one
year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

According to the terms of the service agreements entered into between
the Company and the executive Directors, each of the executive
Directors will receive a monthly salary which is subject to annual review
by the Board and the Remuneration Committee. Each of the executive
Directors is also entitled to a discretionary performance bonus as
may be determined by the Board upon the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The emoluments of Directors have been determined with reference
to the skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and the
performance of each Director, and to the profitability of the Company
and prevailing market conditions during the year.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen, Mr. Tang, Warren Louis and Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company and were appointed for a
three-year term expiring on 21 November 2020, 21 November 2020
and 31 December 2021, respectively, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the relevant letter of employment.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as disclosed in Note
29 of the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
and a Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of Blossom Spring Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”) and Ms. Jin
Xiaogin (“Ms. Jin") has provided annual confirmations in respect of the
compliance with non-competition undertaking (the “Undertaking”) given
by them.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by each of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin with the Undertaking
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin of the Undertaking
given by them.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 17 to 19 to this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company

Nature of
Capacity interest

Name of Director
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ordinary shares held
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Ms. Jin Interest in a controlled corporation® Long position 300,000,000 75%
®HT TEERERD o)
Mr. Ng Yiu Lun Beneficial owner Long position 98,000 0.0245%
higfm k4 EnEEA HAE
Interest of spouse Long position 40,000 0.01%
BB we
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Q) Blossom Spring is the registered and beneficial owner of these shares. The entire issued
share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. Therefore, Ms. Jin is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors or
chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) have any interest in, or had been granted or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company, and its other associated corporations which
required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme of the Company as set out in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRERER &4

Blossom Spring™

EEME

Beneficial interest

BatEa LSy}

Mr. Wong Tai Wai® Interest of spouse

FREFEAE? B HE
Notes:

(1) The entire issued share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Jin is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring.

2) Mr. Wong Tai Wai is the spouse of Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wong Tai Wai is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Jin is deemed to
be interested.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2018, there was no other
person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company,
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company as having
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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Nature of interest

Long position

Long position

1

BRAFHREINARBBRESESIN  BHEZ
E-N\FE+-_A=T—BLFE XAEEIE
FIA - MRS AR T -

FERRNAQTRG REERGE
=

RZE-N\E+-A=1t—H BARAES
HAAHFIAE  RARRERHAEIN - T
ALTRARB A MAEBRO T - EHEEAER
RARARIRE 7 M B8 1501 38 XV B8 56 336 &
EFNECMORRIORE

% of Issued

Number of share capital

ordinary shares held of the Company
522 F B #1T

FrgEREE Nl 4
300,000,000 75%
300,000,000 75%

Wi

(1) Blossom Spring I & EPE BT AR S L LFH < IRIE
FHREEEG - € LR AR Blossom Spring A
MEIMRO PR ©

2 FEFRAEERSLTMERE - BREEHRHAERKRE
FTREEEBRRARS LI WEREERENERE
B AL -

BRARFHRABBEEN R_Z—NEF+_A
=+—B BAQRESZHAEEMNE  BA
RE|EERBEI  HEEMATHRARRRK
DB DT EBABAELTRAR WE%;M
A5 REEENEBIGEEFNELMAER
KB o



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company's top five customers
accounted for approximately 15.2% of total revenue and the Company's
single largest customer accounted for approximately 6.8% of total
revenue.

All the Company’s top five customers were independent third parties. To
the best of their knowledge, information and belief, none of the Group,
its Directors, members of senior management, and their respective
associates and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued shares,
had any interest in or financial or business relationship with any of the
Group's top five customers during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 as disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted fully exempted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

Save for transactions in connection with the reorganisation in preparation
for the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange, as disclosed in the
Prospectus and save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Group’s
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors'liability insurance has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The coverage
and the sum insured under the policy are reviewed annually. Further, the
Company’s Articles of Association provide that Directors are entitled to be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against claims from third parties
in respect of certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover
in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares as at
27 March 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 7 to 16
under the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report, which forms part of this directors'report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report, there is no significant or
important event that affects the business of the Group.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Yao

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2R BENRE

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GLOBAL INTERNATIONAL CREDIT GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Global International Credit

Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 70 to 159, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit relates to impairment assessment
of loans and interest receivables.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE RPN ETNAEEEARETEE
Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables

Refer to Note 4.1(a) (critical estimates, judgements  We assessed management’s assessment of provision for impairment of loans
and errors), Note 17 (loans receivable) and Note 18  and interest receivables by performing the following procedures:

(interest receivables) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net loans
and interest receivables amounted to HK$988.7
million and HK$7.8 million, respectively. Provision
for impairment assessments of loans and interest
receivables under the expected credit loss (“ECL")
model amounted to HK$3.6 million and HKS$0.1
million, respectively.

Management assessed the provision for impairment
of loans and interest receivables based on the
estimation of ECL under a “three-stage” model.
In developing the loss allowance of loans and
interest receivables, management use judgement
in making the assumptions about the probability
of default and loss given default with reference to
the historical delinquency ratio of loans portfolio,
collateral values and current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors.

We focused on this area because the carrying

understood, evaluated and validated the control over impairment
assessment of loans and interest receivables, which related to
management’s identification of events that triggered the significant
increase in credit risk of loans and interest receivables and events of
default;

carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the existence and
accuracy of the aging of loans and interest receivables as at the
reporting date;

involved the valuation specialist to review the valuation methodology
and approach adopted by management in the ECL assessment;

evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions, such as
delinquency ratio and collateral values used in assessing the ECL based
on the historical data as well as market economic data; and

re-performed management’s calculation of loss allowance under ECL
model which grouped together all the receivables with similar risk
characteristics and based on the probability of default, exposure at
default and loss given default.

value of loans and interest receivables is significant ~ Based on the procedures described above, we found management’s
to the consolidated financial statements and the  judgements and estimates applied in the impairment assessment of loans
management’s impairment assessment of loansand  and interest receivables were supportable by available evidence.

interest receivables require the use of significant
judgements and estimates.

FE W & =R R SRR E R

BLHE MM EmEM T4 (BREET - #
%%;&)Mﬁaﬂf%% ) KBt sk 18 (&
EE

VB BT N IR Fr a0 B 12 E R U E SRR B BB B AT A

AR - %ﬁl%%ﬁﬁ%%m&ﬂuﬂﬁ%ﬁmTﬂ Hp R
B2 [ T R A S PR MR R R S R B AR R L R AR S Y SR IR A

%;%—A$+ =t-— BEEBERE N4 ETE
WE%&HE/%M%Uﬁ9,opw%ﬁ&
7,800,000/ 7T - IRIBFFBHEEHB ([FBHEE LUmiE s T2 F - LU ERE R RN ER SRS B HRER
E1E ) R - 38 5RO YR BEY R (E AT fh BT R T
VEH B 55 Bl 3,600,000 7 7T, K2 100,000 78 7T °
\ BATHEEREEEEENBHEE BRI ETMERNG

EEEREIZBEIENTHNEHEESE BER%:
Bt S WK ER R EEE - R %
FEWMBE R RFBENEEBRER  BRELR FETEBRAES N MEDBEESIE AN TS ESIE T
EERAENBABR LR KFREER HEHREEEEMBERELINEREER &
EHAZERERZNIRERATEMEER - {
FRHEEE MR MENBARBEERHBRR - EFRTEREEBYHEHEERBEX THEERENTES L

‘ E%%ﬁﬂﬁ#@*ﬁmr% NI A — W IRIFELHOB R -
BMEFRIEEERRERER LT EH é%@@&éﬁ%%ﬁkrﬁﬂo
FEEEHEHUBREBEA MEBREY
JEWEREFMEABEFGHEERERNAE ERLINER  RMRAETEEREREREF ERME S
R %&ﬁ%ﬁTﬁﬁﬁi%

65



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR S ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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BOtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ—E—N\F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-B=1+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ke Sl oS
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% THET FHIT
Revenue WA 6 124,277 103,479
Other income HadA 6 14 45
Administrative expenses THRZ 7 (33,876) (29,950)
Reversal of impairment losses — net BOREEE-FE 8 9,679 788
Fair value change and loss on early MEERIANAFEES R
redemption on derivative financial REELOEE
instrument - (15,306)
Finance (costs)/income — net B (BAR) /WA — 588 10 (12,463) 14,941
Profit before income tax R FI 15 B¢ A0z 87,631 73,997
Income tax expense MEBAX 11 (19,218) (10,991)
Profit and total comprehensive income &2 F#HE ABEER BRI R
for the year attributable to owners mEWAEEE
of the Company 68,413 63,006
Earnings per share attributable to KAREBAEBEESREF
owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted —HRREE
(expressed in HK cents per share) (ABRBMZ7) 12 17.1 15.8
The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated BI7SEISOEMMEARNE M B MERMERK
financial statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO BN R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—N\E+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Loans receivable

Deferred income tax assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans receivable

Interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Repossessed assets

Pledged deposit

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Notes
Mo e
EE
RBEE
Y BB REE 14
JEURE X 17
BREFSHREE 22
FEMRIE - e M EAE
KIA 19
IRBEELE
RBEE
U E X 17
JE ULF) B 18
AR ~ e AR
A 19
KU B & B 20
BEBFR 21
ReRREEED 21
REBEEMAE
EEHAE
E®
KATHEE AEGEES
fi& 2 26
1 27
ERsE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
1,277 734
340,737 234,043
582 727

- 1,341
342,596 236,845
647,918 532,866
7,817 6,042
8,502 3319
29,094 1,778
8,690 4,750
60,813 13,445
762,834 562,200
1,105,430 799,045
4,000 4,000
741,476 694,315
745,476 698,315

71



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
SO AR R ()

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—N\FE+=-H=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo e FET FET
LIABILITIES 8%
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables FERT B A N CE b FE A SRR 23 4,472 3,037
Tax payable FE S I8 8,578 2,323
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E M IEFR 24 296,904 95,370
Loans from a related company £l NI == 29(b) 50,000 -
Total current liabilities REAEAE 359,954 100,730
Total liabilities =Rk 359,954 100,730
Total equity and liabilities ERREBEHEH 1,105,430 799,045
The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated F75E 159 B MM T /RS OF B %5 R A A8 BK
financial statements. 2B o
On behalf of the Board RREEE
Ms.Wang Yao T Z + Ms. Jin Xiaoqin €2 E 7 +
Director &% Director &%

/2



BIREEEEARLT 2018 F3f

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B EREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ—E—N\F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRHE AEL
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
REx  KRoRE ExRE  REEA @t
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pl 5% TR THT T T THT
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—t&
—-A-BH&ER 4,000 122,176 390621 145712 662,509
Total comprehensive FEGERALE
income for the year - - - 63,006 63,006
Transactions with owners BREETANRS
Final dividend relating to 2016 BHE-_Z—R"EHRHMKRE 13 - - - (12,000) (12,000)
Special dividend relating to 2016~ BB —Z—~EHKHKRE 13 - - - (7,600) (7,600)
Interim dividend relating t0 2017~ BB =Z—tFHHHRE 13 - - - (7,600) (7600)

Total transactions with owners, EEBANR 585
recognised directly inequity ~ EEREZE - - - (27,200) (27,200)

Balance at 31 December2017 H=-ZF—+#&
+ZB=+—-AMEs 4000 122,176 390,621 181,518 698315

Balance at31 December2017 R=-ZF—tF+=A

as originally presented =+—-B &8 (R 4,000 122,176 390,621 181,518 698,315
Changeinaccountingpolicy ~ B HEREE - - - (852) (852)
Restated balance at R-B-N\§

1January 2018 —A-AWNRENE 4,000 122,176 390,621 180,666 697,463
Total comprehensive FEGERAAE

income for the year - - - 68,413 68,413
Transactions with owners HBEBANRS
Final dividend relating to 2017 AE_Z—tENRBRE 13 - - - (12,000) (12,000)

Interim dividend relating t0 2018~ BB _Z—\EMFHRLE 13 - -

(8,400) (8,400)

Total transactions with owners, BB ANK 345 -
recognised directlyinequity ~ EERERER - -

(20,400) (20,400)

Balance at31 December2018 R=F—-N\F

TZRZ+-HMER 4,000 122,176 390,621 228,679 745,476
The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated E752159BMM T RARE MM BERKROENK
financial statements. =i
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EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ—E—N\F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=1t—HBLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Proceeds from disposal of a

repossessed asset
Loan interest received
Interest paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Principal and interest received from
convertible promissory note

Bank interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bank and other borrowings

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Proceeds from loans from a related
company

Repayment of loan from a related company

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Repayment of principal and interest to the
ultimate holding company

Dividend paid to the equity holders

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

The notes on pages 75 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes
Bt 5%
RETHEESRE
KEER (AR /EARS 25
HE—HEW B & EMSHIA

B E A E
ERFHE
ENEBNEHFR

Ry (A ES
RE 3

REFHHRERE
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AMBARREAE REK
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B UWERITAE

KRERS (A FEE
REFRR

MEZHRETRE
1T R E AR S KIS OR
IR RTT R EMAER
—RRE R B E RS IR

BEE—HBEBARER
B AR ERIT17 G AN
BEAS RFB FREER
N

B S ERESEE ARE

BMERBMAEL (PFTA)
RE 8

RERRESENEM
(WD) FH#

FRELREEED
FRAE MRS FEY

E 755159
£ °

ok

2018 2017
—2-NF —E+&F
HK$’000 HKS'000
T T
(264,444) 100,247
1,778 -
112,072 103,278
(12,286) (8,943)
(15,837) (9,458)
(178,717) 185,124
(1,123) (33)

_ 277,726

14 37
(1,109) 277,730
277,418 91,523
(75,884) (392,227)
80,000 -
(30,000) -
(3,940) (4,750)

- (247,188)
(20,400) (27,200)
227,194 (579,842)
47,368 (116,988)
13,445 130,433
60,813 13,445
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O R R M

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 January 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans
in Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) regard Blossom
Spring Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), as the ultimate holding company
of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors for issue on 27 March 2019.

—BER

RHEESEEBERAR (ARAAD KD
T-—MF-—AZTHERBERSHESEEE
REBLREVEN (AR —FB=5E0
KiRa RIEF) ERSHES MK AE
REBRAF « RARIWFEMPTSE UL
/& P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °
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A AEE]) TEREERFREMRE
BERMMAEROERER

RNARIEZE ([EF]) 18 Blossom Spring
Global Limited ([ Blossom Spring | » — &R &
BEZEE((EBERHES]) MR/
NEVRBAR R B EREER AR

ARREEBHAE XD HERAAEE
ki

BRRBEREIN  LFAHFYHREAT
AL (TAET) 27 - FEHHBEE
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76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of Global International Credit Group
Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on a historical cost basis.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") has issued several new and revised HKFRSs,
which are generally effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. While some of the
amendments are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, the Group has
applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early.

Annual Improvements to HKRS Standards 2015-
2017 Cycle

EAXEHRME

AM IR EREZE A O B MR PR
MeTBERABKBE -BRABHRBIN
ZEBRRIRMBE2RFEEBER - 15
BRIDRAEE (HRREEEKBEERA
AR E KB A RARR) fRE o

2.1 REEXE
(i) BFEBYUKFEEAREE
A= 3
AKEEzEHPTBEHRERIDBIE
EEUMBREELN (HBEHB
AR ) REBREER (5
6RE)MHRTERE

(i) L%
AEEB2EAEHPBRREERE
SR AREERR -

(iii) FEE IR B F 5] R ASNE5TE B
BEECHMAE ([FEE G
AE])EBEMBLSEH LB
RAIEBMBEHREELN —RR
—E-NF—-—F—B% %R
BREHRAER - BER D
BEIRNERHIAEE A 0
WMEREH AEBER=_Z—N
F-A-—HRABNFE RS H
B R T 5 2R ASET A

FEREVBHREENE RS

BMIA
EREMBREERF 155
ERPARYWA

AEETEZRERBUATE
FIAR

EAEMBHRELEN -F
—hFE_T-LFBEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B O F AR M ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 BEXEBERSE (&)

2.1 RBE%E (E)
(iii) KEFERABIFTET R AS 15 5T &

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

The Group had to change its accounting policies and
make certain retrospective adjustments following the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretation
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2018 reporting period and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of
the impact of these new standards and interpretations is
set out below.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,358,000. All of these
commitments relate to short-term leases which will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in profit or
loss.

R (&)

RABT BT B RELENFE IR
FEEMBHREERE ISR
AEEBREEHETHRRME
HETEPRE - LAEIE
RZHEMERT A BEHRE
RN RLETAZE
BB T EH E SRR ERE
EEEATE -

(iv) [ RERA BT 5T E R R 2 FE

REBHKREERERALIEN =
TE-NE+_A=+—BHE
MR AITHE AEE TH
SHEARRE AEBEYHZ
EHERMRENTENTGE
BT o

BB HEERE 1655 HE
EEVBREERF 1RV =
T—RE—AEMH - REUEE
DTRIEEHERREMRER
HisELTREHERRNEG G
MBRRERP TIARER - RIE
MEA - BE (HEBHBNER
B EXMEENemABEeE
R EEHEREENEE
AIEB IS

BEANBHERETEAE
KA -

T
ZEANBIBFELAEBEEKE
TENSTEE - RREAH
NGB AN A] B A A T &R
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2

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Mandatory application date/Date of adoption by the
Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will
not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption. Right-of-use assets for property leases
will be measured on transition as if the new rules had
always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will
be measured at the amount of the lease liability on
adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Change in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers on the Group's financial statements.

2 BEXEBERSE (&)

2.1 WEEXE(F)
(iv) [ERERABIFTETER R 2 FE (48)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHESEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued) 22 S BEREE ()
2.2(a) Impact on the financial statements 22a) B BERENEE

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies, prior year financial statements had to be
restated. As explained in note 2.2(b) below, HKFRS 9
was generally adopted without restating comparative
information with the exception of certain aspects
of hedge accounting. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new impairment rules
are therefore not reflected in the restated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, but are
recognised in the opening statement of financial
position on 1 January 2018.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included. As
a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot
be recalculated from the numbers provided. The
adjustments are explained in more detail by standard

HRAKESFTHRREE - £—
FENMBHRRBATIAES -
a0 T SR EE2.2(0) B B At - £R
BBV RS R E SRR
BEABILRER T
SRTEVE T ERIN - it &
MO BRABRYER T —+
F+-A=t—BEENNOH
BN KRR - R =T —\F
— A — B EIRIR SO R R o

TRIRBLE 858 B #R A
HE - HETERAREHFTE
MIEE - FHIt - TEEEERRER
BT EHFTEMBEEN NG R
RBET SR EREMRT -

below.
As at
31 December As at
2017 Effect of 1 January
Consolidated statement of as originally the adoption 2018
financial position (extract) presented of HKFRS 9 Restated
—E—tF ERFEBHE R-E-N\F
+=—A=+—8H & 2 Al —H—H
&R AR R R (&%) (%) HomEE (BE5)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET T T T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Loans receivable EE R 234,043 (74) 233,969
Deferred income tax assets i JE R 15 5t & & 727 168 895
Current assets REBEE
Loans receivable FEME K 532,866 (893) 531,973
Interest receivables FEUHI B 6,042 (53) 5,989
Total assets EEHAE 799,045 (852) 798,193
Equity =
Reserves T 694,315 (852) 693,463
Total equity BT 698,315 (852) 697,463
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

80

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of
financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1
January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The new accounting policies are
set out in notes 2.10 below. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
comparative figures have not been restated with the
exception of certain aspects of hedge accounting.

The total impact on the Group's retained earnings as at 1
January 2018 and 1 January 2017 is as follow:

2 BEXEBERSE (&)

22 S BXREH (&)

22b) BB G ERIEIREZMT

£

EEUBRELENEIOFIRE
BETEBFEIREBER
SHELFESREENSRE

B RIEERSRTE

EREREFEEZET

Closing retained earnings
31 December — HKAS39

Increase in provision for loans receivable
Increase in provision for interest receivables

Increase in deferred income tax assets
relating to impairment provisions

Adjustments to retained earnings from

adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018

Opening retained earnings
1 January — HKFRS9

BR+=—A=+—8
WEARR B EF
— BB ERE 3998
JE Uk B SR A 38 n
JRE U ) BB 5 35 n
ERAREREBNEL
FISHEELM

R-F—-—N\F—A—Bi
RNB RN B REER
FOHERE B

L

—A— B8 EYRBEF
— BB RS %R
ek

B N\F—A—HERHK
EAVBREENFEIOF2HT
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BB B R EERNFE IR (7.2.15)
K(7.2.26) KB MEAGE ST - Br
gRMETIEI UWEET
LB BT o

ARER-F—N\FE—H—A
R=Z—+F-A-BREA
FEeyEmT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T
181,518 145,712
(967) -
(53) -
168 -

(852)
180,666 145,712
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(ii)

Classification and measurement
On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial assets held by
the Group and classified its financial assets into the
approximate HKFRS 9 categories.

The application of the new standard does not have a
significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets as debt instruments currently
classified as loans and receivables would continue to be
measured at amortised cost.

This category includes the Group's loans receivable,
interest receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss
(“ECL") model, which are loans receivable and interest
receivables. The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for each
of these types of assets. The impact of the change in
impairment methodology on the Group’s retained
earnings and equity is disclosed above.

While cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits
and deposits and other receivables are also subject to
the impairment requirement of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

B O F AR M ()

2 BEXEBERSE (&)

22 ETBRES (H)
220) BEHBRERAEORZMT

(1)

(i)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BXAEHBEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued) 22 S BEREE ()
2.2(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 22b) BB BHREERFIF LT
A (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) EHEEHRE (F)
The Group applies HKFRS 9 and measures the loss REEHEREAMBmELA
allowance for loans receivable and interest receivables 56 9 5% 7 st e U B B K PR R B
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a ERNEAREBHEEEEBTE
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, BEEE BRIEERREY
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. This resulted in an R BAREE I BIARE
increase of the loss allowance on 1 January 2018 by HREMEHEEBBE - LE
HK$HK$967,000 for loans receivable and HK$53,000 for - N\F-—HA—BHEK
interest receivables. BERRERFENEEREY
I3 hN 967,000 % 7T & 53,000 47T ©
The loss allowances for loans receivable and interest R_B—tF+HA=+—8"
receivables as at 31 December 2017 reconcile to the JE U B SR K FE IR B s 18 B
opening loss allowances on 1 January 2018 are as HEER_ZE-NF-—HA—BFV
follows: HEEEENEIRNT

Loans Interest

receivable receivables

P& R FE W Rl S

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FET

At 31 December 2017 — HKAS39 R-ZZE—+F+=A
=t+t—H-&FFE
AR 3958 15,525 317

Amounts additionally provided through R E B SR
opening retained earnings on adoption FoTBREVIRE

of HKFRS 9 M EEINEFE R 967 53
Opening loss allowances as at R-E—-NF—HA—H
1 January 2018 - HKFRS9 HUEBERE-BE
IR EERFE R 16,492 370
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEXTEHRBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22 FFTBRES (H)
220 BRABRELELE 1555

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and
it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of
other standards.

The new standard establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model
to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The Group
adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact
of the adoption (if any) will be recognised in retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will
not be restated.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in any significant
impact to the financial statements as the timing of
revenue recognition is not changed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

84

23

24

Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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2.3
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive Directors of the entities now comprising the
Group that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is Global International Credit Group
Limited's functional and presentation currency.

24

25

2.6

2.7
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable
to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on non-monetary such as
derivative financial instrument are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Furniture, fixtures and
equipment
- Leasehold improvements

4-5 years

Shorter of remaining lease
terms or useful lives

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflow which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(i) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income

("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual

terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.

(i)  Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEXTEHRBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (ii) &
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial TMIEERE  AEBEZEHE
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial EZAFEN (WL IER A FE
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), FFAEE (HEAFERFAEZED
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the LEMEE)EEFEARES
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of MEEZRIHAGTE - ER
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or FEFAERIE eHEE

loss. ZRGKARIEBEAT I °
Debt instruments EFTA

BB TANRESEIURNA
SHEEREEEZCEBRARZ

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are ZEENRERERB - K&
three measurement categories into which the Group HEBEBIASBRA=R
classifies its debt instruments: =85

HMERE WHEEEES
EWHX/EI\%IEﬁ/mE il
ZEBENRESRELR
BAEASENENR  ZF
BEEREBHENAGTE &

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using

the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 BEXEBERSE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)
FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

The Group’s financial assets held during the year are all
debt instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,
pledge deposits, loans receivable, interest receivables,
deposit and other receivables which are all being
classified as to be measured at amortised cost.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCl, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEXTEHRBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets Q0 BREREMEMEE (B)
(Continued)

(iv) Impairment (iv) JBE

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at
each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflect:

An unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcome.

Reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Note 3.1(b) provides more detail of how the expected
credit loss allowance is measured.

Loans receivable and interest receivables of the Group
are classified as debt investments carried at amortised
cost and are subject to the ECL model.

While cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposit and
deposits and other receivables are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

92

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(Continued)
(v) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

(i)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Classification

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following categories: Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purposes for which the
investments were acquired. Management determined
the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss if they are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, ie are held for trading. They are presented as
current assets if they are expected to be sold within
12 months after the end of the reporting period;
otherwise they are presented as non-current
assets. The Group has not elected to designate any
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. If collection
of the amounts is expected in one year or less
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise loans receivable, interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables and
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

2 BEXEBERSE (&)

Q0 RERAEMERMEE (K)

v) BEAE-F—+tF+=A4
=t —HHEFEE
REBERBEBVHREER
FORETEY BEEKRED
LEEER - Fit - AR E
FHEBERRBESTBRAL -

(i) D
BEE-ZT—++=ZA=+—H"
AEEBESHMEES BUT
R RAFEFABENS
BMEERERKERFIE 9
ERTWERENBENME -
EEERVIRERANETHR
Aok o

@ BRFEFARZNEH
BE
HEENBBEENETER
HREHA L E (BIRFEER
) AARKESESER
BAFEFABEN SR
BE -WMEDEFRESE
HERENR2ZEARNLE
A2 RRBEE &R
2INRFERBEE - A%
By EEEBEREETARR
FEFABENEMEE -

b) EFRERTA
B R EWGRIE RN E B
™ 35 3 8 (B I A B E 3
AEENRERNIEITE
TREE - WRBEBERHAR
—FREFEHEAKD
AEDBRRBDEE - R
ZUNEINRIERBDEE -
& B ) B RN U R IR
BREAHIBIRRKROE
WER BRME - -&E
Ko E At J& YR TR DA B 4 4
FREREMNREFEY -



RIEEEERRAT 2018 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(Continued)

(v)
(ii)

(iii)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

Reclassification

The Group could choose to reclassify a non-derivative
trading financial asset out of the held for trading
category if the financial asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
other than loans and receivables are permitted to be
reclassified out of the held for trading category only in
rare circumstances arising from a single event that was
unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In
addition, the Group could choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held for trading or available-for-
sale categories if the Group had the intention and ability
to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications were made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost
or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair
value gains or losses recorded before reclassification
date were subsequently made. Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity categories were determined at the
reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of
cash flows adjusted effective interest rates prospectively.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
were derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets had expired or have been
transferred and the Group had transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
other comprehensive income were reclassified to profit
or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(Continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

(Continued)
(iv) Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not change
an adoption of HKFRS 9, see description above.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments were
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss were subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are recognised as follows:

for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss'— in profit or loss within other income or other
expenses

for available-for-sale financial assets that are
monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency - translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost of the security are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income

for other monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale — in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(Continued)

(v)

(iv)

)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Dividends on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale equity instruments were
recognised in profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations when the Group’s right to receive
payments was established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss was included in the net gains/(losses).
Interest on available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity
investments and loans and receivables calculated
using the effective interest method was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations.

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets was impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets was impaired
and impairment losses were incurred only if there was
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that could be
reliably estimated.
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2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(v) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)
Impairment (Continued)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there
was objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

)

(@)

(b)

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and otherfinancial assets
(Continued)
(v) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

)

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss was measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset was reduced and the amount of the
loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan had a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
was the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group could
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease could be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where Global International Credit Group Limited currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Global International Credit Group Limited has also entered
into arrangement that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amount to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the terminator of a
contract.

2.13 Loans receivable
Loans receivable are property mortgage loans and personal
loans granted to customers in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of loans receivable is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.14 Interest receivables
Interest receivables are interests derived from property
mortgage loans and personal loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.15 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2 BEXEBERSE (&)

211

2.12

213

2.14

2.15

TEEMITR
PTETANMSRITESNITLE A
ZRFERER - BEREERTFEER

e

HEETHIA
ERBEESEARAFBNHESR
EEATRTRNBHOER SR I
EERFRAELEARARBERE
ENGEAER SREERAER
EREH YEAHUBRARRER
HFHE - REEREERAAND
R A BB R EESTERT (P
AN BE AR LR A KY) D2 1K SH AR
TR TR R -

P& W & =X
BREFRREAEXBEEFRRT
BEFPHMEIZBERRAAER - i
BHRKRERN - FHEEFEHR
Ym - RinErRsEE T2
RIERBDEE -

RSN R A TERR - EkE
B B ) S 5 3 L M
fBatE -

FEW A2
ERMESEAFTEBBREPRT
EPOYERIBESRRILAE T
EERHE -

BRI B IR A T ERR - el
PR BE I s 5 9 L (L
e -

ANFE - BE REMEURKIE
ENFE - BE REMRERIEN S
BATERR ARERERNEZX
RN BB ER T E -



BIREEEEAERLT 2018 FIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Other payables
Other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
account is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete the asset for its intended use or sales.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sales.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

100

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means
that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward as
deferred tax assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Employee benefits

102

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group has a defined contribution plan for its
employees. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of expenditures required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.24 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their
fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related
outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the related
loans and advances together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated statement
of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at cost less impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described below.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

2.26 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases (note 28). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.27 Dividend distribution

104

Provisions is made for the amount of any dividend declared
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to various types of financial
risks: market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's interest rate risk
arises from its loans receivable (Note 17), pledged
deposit and cash and cash equivalents (Note 21), loans
from a related company (Note 29(b)) and bank and other
borrowings (Note 24). Except for pledged deposit, cash
and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings of
HK$246,904,000, which are entitled to interest at variable
rates, and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk, loans receivable, loans from a related company and
bank and other borrowings of HK$50,000,000 are issued
at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2018, if market interest rates
had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profits would have been
approximately HK$1,481,000 (2017: HK$645,000) lower/
higher, respectively.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BBERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEEEZE (8)
(b) Credit risk b) FERE

106

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s main income
generating activity is lending to customers and therefore
credit risk is a principal risk.

The Group's credit risk arises from pledged deposit,
cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, interest
receivables and deposits and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets which are stated as follows:
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As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Loans receivable (Note 17) EUWE K (FFFE17)

Interest receivables (Note 18) FEUFIE (Bt 18)

Deposits and other receivables (Note 19) 1% & K H b & Ug 30 18
(BMt3E19)

BEEIRF R (B aE21)

ReERBFSFEY (HE21)

Pledged deposit (Note 21)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Group’s
pledged deposit and cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which the
Group’s management believes are of high credit quality.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FRET
988,655 766,909
7,817 6,042
4,833 2,776
8,690 4,750
60,813 13,445
1,070,808 793,922

RZE-NFR-_ZT—LF
tTZR=+—H X&EEHFE
ERERERMBITREERE
AR REE  AEEE
BEEREZSHBEELRER



3

RIEEEERRAT 2018 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)
(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk management

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of their new and existing customers before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. In particular,
the Group manages its credit risk by:

- Ensuring that the Group has appropriate credit risk
practices, including an effective system of internal
control, to consistently determine adequate
allowances in accordance with the Group'’s stated
policies and procedures, HKFRS and relevant
supervisory guidance.

- Creating credit policies to protect the Group
against the identified risks including the
requirements to obtain collateral from borrowers,
to perform robust ongoing credit assessment of
borrowers and to continually monitor exposures
against internal risk limits.

- Limiting concentrations of exposure by type of
asset, counterparties, credit rating, geographic
location etc..

- If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking
into account its financial position, past experience
and other factors.

- Establishing a robust control framework regarding
the authorisation structure for the approval and
renewal of credit facilities.

- Developing and maintaining the Group'’s processes
for measuring ECL including monitoring of credit
risk, incorporation of forward-looking information
and the method used to measure ECL.

- Ensuring that the Group has policies and
procedures in place to appropriately maintain and
validate models used to assess and measure ECL.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

108

(ii)

Measurement of ECL

The Group measures loss allowance under HKFRS 9
ECL model. The measure of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e., the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial assets
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:

Probability of default (PD);

Loss given default (LGD); and

Exposure at default (EAD)
These figures are generally derived from internally
developed statistical models and other historical data

and they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)
(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Elements of the ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to
individual group;

The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a
lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

Development of ECL models, including the
various formulas and the choice of inputs over
determination of the period over which the entity
is exposed to credit risk based on the behavioural
life of the credit exposures, loss given default and
collateral recovery of the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between
macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as delinquency ratios and collateral values,
and the effect on probabilities of default, exposures
at default and losses given default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its
models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

110

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Continued)

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loans
receivable and interest receivables according to 3
different stages under the ECL model:

Stage 1: financial assets without significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on 12-month ECL

Stage 2: financial assets with significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL

Stage 3: credit impaired assets where loss
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL

Significant increase in credlit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Significant increase in crediit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant decrease in
credit rating of the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtors’ ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

112

(ii)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Significant increase in crediit risk (Continued)

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject
to impairment requirements to assess whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macro-economic data
such as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates
a ‘base case’ scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust
its estimates of PDs.

The Group uses different criteria to determine whether
credit risk has increased significantly and the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit are effective, meaning that significant increase
in credit risk is identified before the exposure is defaulted
or when the asset becomes 30 days past due. The Group
performs periodic back-testing of its ratings to consider
whether the drivers of credit risk that led to default were
accurately reflected in the rating in a timely manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Significant increase in crediit risk (Continued)

The Group has controls and procedures in place to
identify when the credit risk of an asset improves and
the definition of significant increase in credit risk is no
longer met. When this is the case the asset may move
back to stage 1 from stage 2, subject to payments being
up to date and the ability of the borrower to make future
payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate. In particular, the following qualitative
indicators are taken into account in determining the risk
of default occurring:

probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers;
and

death of the debtor.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECL. The Group uses internal and
external information to generate a ‘base case’ scenario
of future forecast of relevant economic variables along
with a representative range of other possible forecast
scenarios. The external information used includes
economic data and forecasts published by governmental
bodies and monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the non-
linear impact of assumptions about macroeconomic
factors on ECL. The Group applies probabilities to the
forecast scenarios identified.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HBEREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MEREBER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEmEE (&)
(iii) ~ Credit risk exposure (i) 1EEREMHMO
The credit quality classification of loans receivable and BEASEBEREEBEED
their respective interest receivables using the Group’s EREFRESBEYHEN
ECL model is set out in the table below: EEEZS BTN TE

As at 31 December 2018
R-FB-NHF+=ZA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL
F—RER
+=H@A E_RER E=RER
& B ZHIFEHA ZHifEHY
FEEBE FEBFE GEBER
Loans receivable e E 871,291 116,362 4,585 992,238
Impairment allowance BB E (1,015) (1,991) (577) (3,583)

Loans receivable — netof ~ FEURE

impairment allowance — R ERE 870,276 114,371 4,008 988,655
Interest receivables JEHH S 4,587 2,730 616 7,933
Impairment allowance B R (13) (43) (60) (116)

Interest receivables — net of &Y FI| &,
impairment allowance — BRI E RS 4,574 2,687 556 7,817

As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+F+=HA=+—8

Loans Interest

receivable Receivables

JE W E R JE W) B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TAT

Performing BETT 769,405 6,042
Doubitful xR - -
Loss &1 13,029 317
782,434 6,359

Individually impaired ERINERES (13,029) (317)
Collectively impaired SRRE (2,496) -
Net of impairment provision MR ERE 766,909 6,042
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B ORI IR R M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 B beEIE ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEREE (&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEmEE (&)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv) BRETEZHT
The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to the inputs EEBEEEHESHNEH A
used in internally developed models, macroeconomic HIEMEE R ERA2E Al
variables in the forward-looking forecasts, economic EEFEINEZBEEEE &
scenario weighting and other factors considered when ESEEENNERBERA
applying expert judgment. Changes in these inputs, W e H AR =5 8K o
assumptions and judgments impact the assessment of ZE2H BRERHENED
significant increase in credit risk and the measurement of 1 ¥ (5 B B B 78 2 32 hn K& 78 51
ECLs. EEBETEELETE -
The following table shows the impact on ECL allowance TRERNBBAREER 2 80H
on loans receivable and interest receivables as at 31 HE-_Z—N\F+ZA=+—
December 2018 by changing individual input. B EWE R R ERF B HTE

HEEBRERENTE -

Impact on ECL allowance on

Change in input on loans receivable
ECL model and interest receivables
HEREKWERREKRREH

RHEFEEEERETNSHED AHMEEREERERE

- Assuming a further 10% weighting added to - Decrease by HK$3,000
the probability of the optimistic scenario and a - JRA3,00087C
corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the
base scenario

- BRREZBBROMRE—SIEIN10% 1
BERRERGRBRE LD 10%HEE

- Assuming a further 10% weighting added to - Increase by HK$425,000
the probability of the pessimistic scenario and a ~ 3504250008 7T
corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the
base scenario

- BRRBEEBBEROMEE—FILIN10% 4
BERRENGRBRE LD 10%HEE

- Assuming no significant increase in credit risk since - Decrease by HK$1,584,000
initial recognition was identified (i.e, all the financial - BA1,584,000% 7T
assets in Stage 2 moved to Stage 1)

- (REREETE A HERILE B R I AR 0 (AD
E_RBOMACREEBBREE —EER)

- Assuming the forecast collateral value increase by - Decrease by HK$888,000
10% - R4 888,000 T

- RERFEAERREE LT 10%

— Assuming the forecast collateral value decrease by - Increase by HK$1,354,000
10% - 38901,354,000 7% 7T

- BREHERREETE10%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

116

(b)
()

(vi)

Credit risk (Continued)

Collateral held as security

The Group holds collateral against certain loans
receivable in the form of mortgages over property. As
at 31 December 2018, 99.6% of the Group'’s gross loans
receivable were secured by mortgages over property.
Majority of the collateral are residential properties,
commercial properties and industrial properties and all
of the collateral are located in Hong Kong.

In the majority of cases, the Group grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property for first
property mortgages, and where it is a subordinated
property mortgage, the aggregate lending (Group'’s
loan aggregated with all prior mortgage loans) of
no more than 70% of the value of the underlying
property. Approval from a director of the subsidiary of
the Company, a credit manager and a credit officer is
needed for loans granted with a loan-to-value ratio that
exceeds 70%. The directors and senior management of
the Company meet regularly to review the loan to value
ratio and when (1) there is a significant change in the
property price index in Hong Kong; or (2) when loans are
renewed. The directors and senior management of the
Company consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans and interest receivables is significantly mitigated
by the property held as collateral, with reference to
the market value of the property which were valued
by independent third party valuers as at the end of the
reporting period.

Concentration on credit risk

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 15.2% (2017: 11.4%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. They
accounted for approximately 10.1% (2017: 12.3%) of
the gross mortgage loans receivable balances as at 31
December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash
flow forecasting is performed by management. The
Group monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn borrowing facilities at all times
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits on
any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal financial position
ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory or legal
requirements.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of
HKS$115,096,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$635,630,000). Such undrawn borrowing facilities
expire within one year and are annual facilities subject to
review every year.

The Group's primary cash requirements, apart from
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank
and other borrowings and payment for interest and
operating expenses.
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B ORI IR R M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MHEREER)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) #mEELEE (E)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TERAMBEREFREALD
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining FHEMFHSEBEEE S AEE
period at the end of the reporting year to the contractual MeRaE=E@E AR -
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the T ERSBRAEHNARITR
contractual undiscounted cash flows. WEME °
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TR TET
Within one year —FR
Other payables (Note 23) H At A5 k3 (BT 5 23) 1,391 1,027
Bank and other borrowings (Note 24) iR1 &ﬁ@{ﬁm (BF5E24) 296,904 95,370
Loans from a related company B~ B B R (B R 29(b))
(Note 29(b)) 50,000 -
348,295 96,397
3.2 Capital management 32 EXRERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to $$ EEREAMERRRELS
safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that BeEme ) BEERHESERK
they can continue to provide returns to the shareholder and ﬁ}ﬁ HEHRY SEAMMEEABAL
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal RN UREHRENERRE
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. PUBAR & AR BCAS o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group REFRHBEARE  AEExE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, Eﬂﬁkﬁﬁ‘?‘h%mﬂi B2 MR
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets REER  BOIHRMHBLEEEIN
to reduce debt. BARETS -
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B ORI IR R M ()

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HEEBER(E)
3.2 Capital management (Continued) 32 EXEE (&)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank
and other borrowings’ and ‘loans from a related company’ as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
pledged deposit and cash and cash equivalents. Total equity is
calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group's strategy remains unchanged,
which was to maintain the gearing ratio within 100%, and
the gearing ratios and net cash position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

AEBNEEABLRAREER
B o L RIRERFRERIAE R R
A E o B FRIEERARE (B
AR BRR KRR [RITREAM
B3R A [E AR ER])) R B EHF
BRARERASEEYIE -
REEL AT IR NRFI A [ 5]
HE - AEBENERESTE  EE
BELREFTEI00 AR MAE
BER - N\FR_ZE—tF+=
A=+ HBEMEAEABLERRS
SRR T -

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Bank and other borrowings (Note 24) HRAT N B fE R (B 5 24)
Loans from a related company RAEE A A1 E 3k (M EE29(0))
(Note 29(b))
Less: pledged deposit and cash and B BERFERERE R
cash equivalents (Note 21) ReFEY (MFE21)

Net debt [ERE=

Total equity 0 ke

Gearing ratio BEEBEBLX

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
296,904 95,370
50,000 -
(69,503) (18,195)
277,401 77,175
745,476 698,315
37.2% 11.1%
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND 4
ERRORS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(a) Estimation of recoverability of loans and other

receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loans
and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied
to loans and other receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of impairment of loans
and other receivables under both HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39
requires the use of estimates and judgement. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of receivables
and provision for impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumption and inputs used
are disclosed in Note 3.1.

(b) Critical judgement in income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the
Group's revenue was generated from the money lending business
of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong
Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans
offered to the Group's customers. Information reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused
on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group's
resources are integrated and no discrete financial information is
available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information about
the Group’s products and services are presented.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the interest income earned from the
money lending business of providing property mortgage loans
and personal loans in Hong Kong. Revenue and other income
recognised during the year are as follows:

B ORI IR R M ()

SBWEH

REBEE2-_ZE—N\FER=-ZE—+tF+=-A8
=+—RALEFE AEENRAELEER
EEREDERBERMAAETHER
% - WARBBRTFAEERFNERAT
BRI A BRA - EAEBEE RS LK
BHEmME  ERTAEEFELERR
ENEREPREREAEEERATA
RSBV BERBR THARERZERKL
BEE R YEEIEEAEEER
MR D EDITHER -

REE-_Z—N\FER-_Z—+F+_-54
=+—HIEFE AEEREIBELH
FIEWRAREEYESBQ MIREBER °

WA R ELAth U A

WATEERNEBRHMERBERRALA
B E T EER PR M B A - RF
ME R ERA R E MBI AIT

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—BA=1+—HLFE

Revenue PN
Interest income AEHBA
Other income Habg A
Bank interest income RITHI B YA
Referral income YA
Sundry income HIBIA

2018 2017
—E-N\F G
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
124,277 103,479

14 37

- 5

- 3

14 45
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BA SRR FYRE ()

7 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

122

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’emoluments) (Note 9)

Advertising and marketing expenses

Legal and professional fees

Auditor's remuneration

— Audit services

- Non-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 14)

Operating lease of land and buildings

Other administrative expenses

7 THMX

EERAMFAX
(BREFEHM) (H5E9)

BEERMSHERRX

EREMERER

ZERED B =

—EBZRS

—IFEZIRH

ME - BEMRBNE
(&£ 14)

T RETFHEERE

H AT X

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—HLEE

12,259 11,879
10,452 7,834
1,839 1,827
1,250 1,200
499 365
559 415
4,019 3,993
2,999 2,437
33,876 29,950
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8 REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES - NET 8 RELFERIE—-FE

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE—Z-—\F+-A=+—HLEE

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
not credit
impaired
(Stage 2)
FEERE

12 months
expected
credit loss

(Stage 1)

1218 B & H
EEEE
(E—HER)
HK$’000
FHxT

e

Net reversal of/(charge for) provisions J&UW & ZURE T &

FEEE
(F=RER)
HK$’000

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
credit
impaired
(Stage 3)
FERE
28 E
FEBR
(B=FEE)
HK$’000
THERT

#t
HK$’000

FHET FERT

for impairment assessment on BERR (Ax)
loans receivable R 2,063 (1,693) 9,083 9,453
Net reversal of/(charge for) provisions & U &I B R B FF &
for impairment assessment on BERL (Ax)
interest receivables R 22 (36) 240 226
2,085 (1,729) 9,323 9,679

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-2—+t&T-A=+—HILFE

Individual
impairment

allowances

1] 71) % (B 185 s
HK$'000
FHTT

FEW & BURE RT B
e EPES

Net reversal of provisions for
impairment assessment on

loans receivable 236

Collective
impairment
allowances
HEDRE B E
HKS$'000
FHET

Total
BET
HK$'000
THT

552 788
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

9

EEEFMAX (BEZESHMH)

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=1+—HLEFE

Salaries, benefits and bonus e BRI

Pension costs — defined contribution plans

(Note) (P 5E)

Note: The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of their gross
earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in future year.

Contributions totalling HK$61,000 (2017: HK$60,000) were payable to the fund
at the year-end date.
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RN G BRAN — FUE ARG &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
11,897 11,510

362 369
12,259 11,879

REERBEREBCRGIERATR DB GH) 2 E

el NEe R ([REDTE]) - RIBERE
SFERA EREEINEEERAARKER
Mm% (88 LR A150087T) [(BED
AR ERESHEN ARENEEE
R BIE L PTG o B B R U]
BRI R F AR

BEFHARENESHTRA
T—+ 4 1 60,000/87T) °

# 561,000 7T (=
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B ORI IR R M ()

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEEIAXZ(BEEEHM) (K)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the HE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—HLFE"
Group include 3 (2017: 2) directors for the year ended 31 December AEEBANRERSHFIMALTEEIR (=
2018, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in T—+F2R)EE  HEHIE RBRHK
Note 31. The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2017: 3) HFAIRAMAN - BEZT—N\F+=A
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: “+—HLFE ENTHT 28 (=ZF

—tF 3R)BRSHEMALHHHAT

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-BA=1t—HLEFE

Salaries, benefits and bonus e BHRIEL 2,524 2,844
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — FE R RET S 36 54
2,560 2,898

The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the LA SERHFMALOFMEBENT

following bands:

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-RA=1+—HLFE

Emoluments bands & E
HK$500,001 = HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7 7T 2 1,000,000 7 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
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10 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 10 BHE§ (RA) WA — %
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HLEFE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance income B # WA
Interest income from convertible promissory A R IR L R A S A
note - 22,432
Exchange realignment on convertible AT RR R IR O SR
promissory note FE - 15157
Gain from early redemption of convertible 2R BB AT R AR A L AR Y
promissory note e - 6,689
- 44,278
Finance costs B 75 B A
Interest expenses on secured bank loans EERRITERFERAZ (2,302) (445)
Interest expenses on unsecured bank loans EERRITERFERAZ (87) -
Interest expenses on secured other borrowings A # 1 E 4 (& 2 F BB & (9,341) (8/498)
Interest expenses on loans from a related B AR BB
company (733) -
Interest expenses on loan from the ultimate SRERARERFEMAX
holding company - (5,216)
Exchange realignment on loan from the BERIER AR ERENEH
ultimate holding company FE - (12,780)
Exchange losses b 5 &8 - (2,398)
(12,463) (29337)
(12,463) 14,941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided for at the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2,000,000
estimated assessable profits and 16.5% for estimated assessable
profits above HK$2,000,000 for the group entity qualified for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced pursuant to the
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017. For group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided for at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Hong Kong profits tax was
calculated at a single flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents:

11 FE

B ORI IR R M ()

SHAX

BHEZZ-—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE"
mﬁ_ﬁ T FERBE (EET) (B 75%) 15661
BERSIAFSHBEEMAT  AEKEER
H B2 AY B 2,000,000 78 7T 17 5T FE R B % F %
8.25% 1 i B 5 » 2,000,000 78 7T LA _E B {51
FE SR R IR 165% E N Bl - AT A
MBHFERERNEEERE NS B
ISR AT Z 16.5% B 48 — T R Ve L B -

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HILFE "
BEFE m&ﬁ?E%Mmﬂmm%m
B-H—MEE

FFABHEE AR NEHEEE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=+t—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax BN EAFS 18
— Current tax on profits for the year —FARTEARE 14,412 10,922
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years —EEE %TE/ (FBEE) BB 4,493 (10)
Total current tax BIVEAR T8 48 58 18,905 10,912
Deferred tax (Note 22) EER A (T 7 22)
~ Provision for deferred income tax in current year — ZN4F & 4 F1 1§ 313 79
Income tax expense FISF 19,218 10,991
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group'’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise as follows:

11 FEHRAX ()

127N 5 [ A B R 15 75 AR B 51 3 ey A TR
EwmeB AR REHOT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER FHET
Profit before income tax B 15 556 AT s 7 87,631 73,997
Calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate of REAFEBHE825%
8.25% or 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) K 165% & &
(ZZF—Lt%F :16.5%) 14,294 12,210
Under/(over)-provision in prior years TERBEIR(B5) BE 4,493 (10)
Income not subject to taxation HARBA (2) (7,315)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes Rk 321 5,949
Tax loss for which no deferred income tax assets 7 f& 52 IR 1 |15 54 & B HY
was recognised MIAEBE - 133
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIERE IF ZREM R E 115 24
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ) 5 A R FER I EEIBIRE
now recognised to reduce current tax R E R BRI IE (3) -
Income tax expense FMEFREX 19,218 10,991

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD") has issued enquiries and a letter to
the Company disagreeing with certain interest income received by
the Company during the years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17
being claimed as capital and offshore in nature. A tax specialist has
been engaged and the Directors were of the view that no provision
should be made at 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, notices of assessment of
HK$129,000 and HK$3,058,000 were issued by IRD to the Company
for the years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17, respectively. IRD
agreed to hold over the tax claim subject to the purchase of tax
reserve certificates of HK$3,187,000, which was then purchased by
the Company during the year.

While the Company has lodged objection against the tax
assessments with IRD considering that valid technical grounds are
available in claiming the said interest income as capital and offshore
nature, the ultimate outcome cannot presently be determined.
With a view of probable outflow with resources, the Directors of
the Company considered that a tax provision of HK$4,522,000 in
respect of the tax enquiries shall be provided in current year and
that adequate provision has been made in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREF

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to owners of the Company of HK$68,413,000
(2017: HKS$63,006,000) by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year of 400,000,000 (2017:
400,000,000 shares).

(a) BREXEF
ERERBAEAQBEE AN
i 68,413,000/ T (ZF — £ F -
63,006,000 7T) Br A F W B 4T &
B A% hn 4 F 15 $2400,000,000 % (= Z
—44E 1 400,000,000 I&) 5+ & -

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-B=1+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F G
Profit attributable to owners of the ZN/NECIE S N X il
Company (HK$'000) (F%&T) 68,413 63,006
Weighted average number of ordinary BRERBTME ZETEERKR
shares in issue for basic earnings niEFEH e (Fi%)
per share ('000) 400,000 400,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZF (BL) 171 158

(b) Diluted earnings per share
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding

during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and
hence the diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share.

DIVIDEND

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of
HK3.0 cents per share, totalling HK$12,000,000 is to be proposed at
the upcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

13

(b) BREEER
BE_Z—N\FER_FT—tF+=
BA=Z+—HItFE  SEETEINE
BBEE M AR AHEREE
BFNEAFREREFER -

g2

AAFEREREBRREAEFT KNS FEHRMN
HE-_T—N\E+-_A=+—RHILEER
REARK B F3.08 1L (& 12,000,000
T0) o WE A GFT 5 R R I R Ut PR A
BB o

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK2.0 cents BIR A EREER 2081

(2017: HK1.9 cents) per share ZE—tF 19%81) 8,400 7,600

Proposed final dividend of HK3.0 cents BRI RARESR30E
(2017: HK3.0 cents) per share ZE—HF 3081) 12,000 12,000
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 WME - - BENRRG

At 31 December 2016

R=ZB—-XE+=A

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

Leasehold
improvements Total

HENREKE mEt
HK$’000 HK$000
FEx FET

HK$’000
THET

=+-—H
Cost DN 3,013 2,666 5,679
Accumulated depreciation and 2 5T & &R E
impairment (1,924) (2,639) (4,563)
Net book amount RHEFE 1,089 27 1,116
Year ended 31 December HE—ZE—+HF+=H8
2017 =Et+t—HLEE
Opening net book amount G ¥ ERE F{E 1,089 27 1,116
Additions NE 33 - 33
Depreciation e (390) (25) (415)
Closing netbook amount ERRHEFE 732 2 734
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZE—+FE+=A
=+—H
Cost DN 2,118 2,666 4,784
Accumulated depreciation  REHITE MRIE
and impairment (1,386) (2,664) (4,050)
Net book amount AREFE 732 2 734
Year ended 31 December HE—ZE—NE+=A
2018 =t+t—HALEE
Opening net book amount  F #JER A /F1E 732 2 734
Additions NE 996 127 1,123
Disposals & (21) - (21)
Depreciation e (552) (7) (559)
Closing net book amount R EHEFEE 1,155 122 1,277
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=A
=+—H
Cost B AR 3,001 2,793 5,794
Accumulated depreciation  ZEEHITE MRE
and impairment (1,846) (2,671) (4,517)
Net book amount BREFE 1,155 122 1,277
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('GPF")

REMEREER DG (GPF)

company

BREBRAF

providing personal loans in
Hong Kong

REBRBUAETNERE
%

ordinary shares

10,000 i
LER

15 SUBSIDIARIES 15 BT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December NTAERZE—\F+_A=1+—8mM=
2018: ZMBRFIIK
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Group's equity
and kind of legal entity  place of operation Share capital interest
B 32 3t B R FEXBR
rRERER EENY LTS FRENRARER
2018 2017
“BE-N\f ZZT—+F
Directly owned:
EEER:
GIC (Overseas) Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands limited  Investment holding in Hong Kong 201 ordinary 100% 100%
('GIC Overseas") liability company shares
RERLBEBERAR NEBREZK 201 R E AR
GITI (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands limited  Investment holding in Hong Kong 101 ordinary 100% 100%
('GITI (Overseas)") liability company shares
RERLBEBERAR NEBREZR 101 B @ AR
Indirectly owned:
BMEES
Global International Credit Limited ~ Hong Kong limited liability ~ Money lending business of 391,000,000 100% 100%
('GIC") company providing property mortgage ordinary shares
loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong
BREEBRAR ([RHEE]) BEBRAF REBRENFRBERR 3910000008
MABRNERES il
Global International Finance Hong Kong limited liability ~ Money lending business of 1,000 100% 100%
Limited (‘GIF") company providing property mortgage ordinary shares
loans in Hong Kong
BHERBRAR([RHER]) FABRAF REBRUMFRIBETN 1,000 &
BERER il
Global Property Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong limited liability ~ Money lending business of 10,000 100% 100%
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

16 REFENSHNEMITA

As at 31 December

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans receivable (Note 17)
Interest receivables (Note 18)

Deposits and other receivables (Note 19)

Pledged deposit (Note 21)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)

Total

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables (Note 23)
Bank and other borrowings (Note 24)

Loans from a related company (Note 29(b))

Total

132

SHMEE
REEKATENSREE
FEWRE R (FIsE17)
FEUCH) B (FIsE18)
e ME M ERGRTE
(FF7E19)
BB F R (M EE21)
ReRFSFEW (HiE21)

Bt

TREE
REHRA RN SR AE
H A A 5RIE (B £ 23)
BRIT R E AR SR (M EE24)
RABsE ~ m & (M RE 29(b)

Rt+=ZB=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
988,655 766,909
7,817 6,042
4,833 2776
8,690 4,750
60,813 13,445
1,070,808 793,922
1,391 1,027
296,904 95,370
50,000 -
348,295 96,397
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17 LOANS RECEIVABLE 17 BIWER
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Loans receivable e W B 3R 992,238 782,434
Less: Ve
Provision for impairment assessment of FEREFORE T A S
loans receivable (3,583) (15,525)
Loans receivable, net of provision MR B EENERER 988,655 766,909
Less: non-current portion B IEREE D (340,737) (234,043)
Current portion mENE 647,918 532,866
The Group's loans receivable, which arise from the money lending REBERBEBRUMERBERRMAE
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans HEE G TE £/ EWE S TE
in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. (=1
Except for loans receivable of HK$3,658,000 (2017: HK$8,080,000), B & 803,658,000 0 (Z & — £ 4
which are unsecured, bear interest and are repayable with fixed 8,080,000/ 7T) Y MK 3 - 5T B I A R B
terms agreed with customers, all loans receivable are secured by BT E TR AEENERE RN -
collaterals provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable B RKRERANE PRRENERRIELK
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The maximum A FHEWARER P TR E T BB A
exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is the carrying EHE REREAHIEERNRAEER
value of the loans receivable mentioned above. @ 5 £ R R E AR (E -
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17 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, loans receivable of HK$15,795,000 were
past due but not credit-impaired. Except for overdue personal loans
receivable of HK$1,000 with no collateral, the remaining overdue
balances were property mortgage loans. These were related to a
number of third-party customers and that the directors of the Group
are of the opinion these overdue loans receivable were fully secured
by the collateral. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to
be fully recoverable.

As at 31 December 2017, loans receivable of HK$45,312,000 were
past due but not impaired. These were related to a number of
third party customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Based on past experience, except for overdue personal
loans receivable of HK$23,000 with no collateral, the directors of
the Group are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
on individual loans is necessary for these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the respective
principals and/or interests that had been overdue were still fully
secured by the fair values of collaterals at their respective prevailing
market prices. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable.

The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired loans
receivable is as follows:

17 BWRERR ()

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8" A&
15,795,000/ 7 &) JE U & 3k B %1 BB &) R
= BERE ° BR A 21,0007 JT HY 18 Hf FE UL
BABEFERBRIN S TaBEHRTA
MEZRBER - ZEEREZ[ABLE =
FREER AEEEERAZSHEE
WEFHEBRREEER Bt - 258
BINwAR AT 2EKE -

R-ZE—+E+_A=+—H A#
45,312,000/ 7T B9 JE U & 3k B 481 BR {8 14 R
BB - ZERIE N M %2 EA R
ME=ZFRF - RIFBAELR  REIKT
mh 2 %60 B AL A B 5R23,00078 JT AN ¢ H
REEEEWEERANEAREFZAF
BEERSEEMNHETTMENDRUAZEERE
BEHNEEAS R SFE  WAEEE
REBARZEEHERNERHRREAE
B cEt ZEERDER AR 2ERE -

%% B8 HE i AROR(E B B E RV BRI
DT

As at 31 December
R+t=-—A=+—H

0-30 days 0&30H
31-90 days 31290 H
Over 90 days @0 H

Further analyses on credit quality of loans receivable are set out in
Note 3.1(b).
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
5,518 9,017
734 9,678
9,543 26617
15,795 45312
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17 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 17 EBWEN (/&)
Movements on the Group's impairment of loans receivable are as REBWEKEFREES M T
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-N\Ft-A=t—HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—FER ER R EZERB Mgt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR Tz
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—t§+=A
as originally presented =+—RzEA (R 15,525
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 RIWES Eﬁ@&iﬁ,ﬁﬂ
FORHNTE 967
Balance at 1 January 2018 as restated RZZE-\F-A—-Hx
e (KE7) 3,078 298 13,116 16,492
New loans originated REFER 416 590 - 1,006
Loans recovered or repaid during the year ~ FRE W EIKEENE (2,381) () (9,083) (11,466)
Transfer to 12-month expected #RZNEAE WEE
credit loss (Stage 1) BE(F—RER) 21 (21) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected creditlossnot ~ EBE2 HIBHEEEE
credit impaired (Stage 2) (REERME)
(FZBR) (90) 90 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss credit  EH 22 M8 HZ 8518
impaired (Stage 3) (BEERE)
(B=RE) - - - -
Total transfer between stages EREBRAEGA (69) 69 - -

Impact on year end expected creditloss of ~ FREKEERERE R Y
exposures transferred between stages during  EARTAHIEEE B

the year 2 45 195 - 240
Movements due to changes in credit risk EERMEE S TmE (74) 841 - 767
Write-offs i - - (3,456) (3,456)
As at 31 December 2018 R-B-N&E+=AH

=t+-H 1,015 1,991 577 3,583

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tFE+-_A=+—HItFE

Individually Collectively

impaired impaired Total

&R R E HERE wEEt

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEIT FETT FHETT

1 January 2017 —E—+F—HA—H 13,265 3,048 16,313

Reversal of provision B R (236) (552) (788)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=H

=+—H 13,029 2,496 15,525
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17 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 17 BIRER ()

In general, loans receivable are considered as default when the —RETE - RS ek H AR o BRI K
loans receivable or its related installments are overdue by over 90 BEEBEoKN - AIEIRE KGR BEL -
days. As at 31 December 2018, loans receivable of HK$4,585,000 E(\\:EE—/\E‘T’fﬂ =+—H EKEX
was default under lifetime ECL and a provision of HK$577,000 was 4585000 B AEHBHEEBIETEE
provided. 49 WEFHEE577,0008 TR B -

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant increase HRIEEEREESTHRERAEUKREE
in credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL is measured R mEEEEM((E—BE])BER -
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from T EEEIBRERARKI2ME A AT 8
default events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant BAERNENSHSIBRN BB AEESE
increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2") WL PIETE - B TR EREEHINEE
but not yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based EpsREEREM(TE_BRDEITRIERED
on lifetime ECL. In general, when loans receivable or its related EERE - AEREEEEREHESE
installments are overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase EEBEE - —MRME - WEKERH
in credit risk. During the year ended 31 December 2018, total BES BHZEE30X - FERKBE KIE
provision of HK$370,000 under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was released EN-HEzE_E—NF+=A _+— =N
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on FE - REBHREEBEBEENNTG  $
assessment from ECL model. — B Br 2 38 — B BR ¢ [0 42 48 45370,000 78

TR A HHR A Wa R

As at 31 December 2017, loans receivable of HK$13,029,000 RZE—+tF+_A=+— E! 13,029,000
was individually impaired. The amount of the provision was BITHWENERZERRE RZ2F—+
HK$13,029,000 as at 31 December 2017. These were related to a F+—A=+—8" }ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁz 13,029,000
number of third party customers for whom the directors are of BT ZEeHEEERRTARAERE
the view that the collection of these loans receivable were not WEZERWERNZZE-ARFEH -
probable.
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17 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, reversal of collective impairment
assessment of loans receivable of HK$552,000 was made. The Group
performs collective assessment of the loans receivable by grouping
together all its loans receivable with similar credit risk characteristics
and by applying a historical impairment rate, taking the average of
the most recent 5 financial years of the percentage of impairment
loss recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income to the total loans receivable as at the respective year end
dates.

A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of provision, is as
follows:

B ORI IR R M ()

17 BWRERR ()

RIE—+tF+_A=+—H BREX
#Y FE B Rk (B AT i 8 18 8 12l & 552,000 8 7T ©
AEEBBEREARLBUGEERBRFE
MEKERNEABERER GRAKEA
A EEEARA iR WaERERN
BEERGBREARERERAER S
L FEHETE)  HEREFETER
1 -

RIFBIHA - ERER (FOREE) RRE
HAROFHBERAT

As at 31 December
R+t=-—A=+—H

Current RIVHA
Over 1 year and within 5 years
Over 5 years Jiasp ok

BB —FRAFNARA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
647,918 532,866
79,679 66,229
261,058 167,814
988,655 766,909

137



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

17

18

LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain properties mortgaged
to the subsidiary of the Company for loans granted to its respective
customers were pledged to independent third party licensed
money lenders to secure other borrowings granted to a subsidiary
of the Company. These properties were mortgaged to the Group for
securing loans receivable of HK$266,926,000 (2017: HK$79,977,000)
(Note 24(c)).

As at 31 December 2018, loans receivable with carrying value of
HK$136,485,000 (2017: HK$90,898,000) were charged to a bank to
secure a bank loan facility granted to a subsidiary of the Company
(Note 24(a)).

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

17 BWRERR ()

RZE—NFRZFE—+F+_A=+—
A SRFAERBEZMERTAAG—
M BRARZETHEEEB TR LS
ZHEEREA UAEAAR—HMHBEA
AIEREMERIEER ZSEWETE
F 2 & @ LA B 15 266,926,000 7T (=
— -+ 1 79,977,0007% JT) H B U E 3k (M
FE24(0) ©

RZE—N\F+_A=+—8 BREEA
136,485,000 7T (=& —+ £ : 90,898,000
BIL) MEWERE G FIRIT - BUER
NA—HBRARERIEITERRENIEK
(M 7E24(@)) °

18 BIF R

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Interest receivables FE U FI B
Less: R
Provision for impairment
assessment of interest receivables B

Interest receivables, net of provision

The Group's interest receivables, which arise from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and
personal loans in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Except for interest receivables of HK$42,000 (2017: HK$173,000),
which are unsecured and are repayable with fixed terms agreed
with the customers, all interest receivables are secured by collaterals
provided by customers and are repayable with fixed terms agreed
with the customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of
the reporting dates is the carrying value of the interest receivables
mentioned above.
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JE U ) B H SR (B R A

BR BB 1R B A B

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
7,933 6,359

(116) (317)

7,817 6,042

REE SR EEREDEEBERRAA
B9 B 75 2 2 O MR8 BB T
s -

B A 842,000 70 (ZZ — £ 4F : 173,000
BT BB ARNEEFPEENETE
HABR {232 & FE IR 8O - BT A FEURF B
NEFPREMEAMERR  WARER
FZEMBETHRAEE REHREAD
FrE MR ANEERR A AT e BT
BERHE -
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18 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, interest receivable of HK$4,250,000 were
past due but not credit-impaired. Except for overdue personal
interest receivable of HK$5,000 with no collateral, the remaining
overdue balances were interest derived from property mortgage
loans. These were related to a number of third-party customers and
that the directors of the Group are of the opinion these overdue
interest receivables and the respective loans receivable were fully
secured by the collateral. Accordingly, these balances are still
considered to be fully recoverable.

As at 31 December 2017, interest receivables of HK$3,652,000
were past due but not impaired. These were related to a number
of third party customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Based on experience, except for overdue personal
interest receivables of HK$13,000 with no collaterals, the directors
of the Group are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary for these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the respective principals and/or
interests that had been overdue were still fully secured by the
fair values of collaterals at their respective prevailing market
prices. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to be fully
recoverable.

The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired interest
receivables is as follows:

B ORI IR R M ()

18 FEUF 2 (%)

RZE—NF+ZA=+—0 " BEANE
4,250,000/ JT B B AR i R EERE © B
7 215,000 7 JT /Y 180 HA (8] A JE WA B4 4
@ T aBERY ARBEMEIRE
BERWFE - ZEMNEREEBILE=FH
ERPEH AEEEERAZSHHEK
FE X ABE U E SRR IR A2 BUER -
Eit - ZEHBEDER A2 -

R-ZE—+E+_A=+—H8 A#H
3,652,000 7 7T &9 FE W FI B, 2 %80 HR B 18 KR
B ZEFIBH N % A 8T R D
FEZFEP - RELH BREKHERZA
HA E YR AL A R B13,000B 7T 9N - BIAMEE
EEVWESANE BABUCABRAS N
S ERFENERRAREE AR ER
MATFEZEER ARAEBRESEREA
BEARZSEHTIRBRERE - Bt - Z
LEHBDER AT EWE -

%5 A BE AR E < FEUF B B ARk D
e

As at 31 December
R+t=-—A=+—H

0-30 days 0&30H
31-90 days 31290 H
Over 90 days iBiEo0 H

Further analyses on credit quality of interest receivables are set out
in Note 3.1(b).

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
2,640 1,932

1,211 970

399 750

4,250 3,652

KT EMEELE ZMNE— oMK
5F3.1() °
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18 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18 FEUWFIR (£8)
Movements on the Group’s impairment on interest receivables are REEEWHNEREZBNT :
as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE-2-N\FE+-A=t—-HLEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-Re ERR BB Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TET
Balance at 31 December 2017 as originally ~ RZ=ZE—+F+=f
presented =+—BzE%(R5) 317
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 RINE BB SRS 2R
b of -2 53
Balance at 1 January 2018 as restated RZE-\¥—A—H
R (REY) 34 8 328 370
New loans originated REHER 4 16 - 20
Loans recovered or repaid during the year ~ FRE W EI sk EEME R (26) - (240) (266)
Transfer to 12-month expected #HEE 1. A %EH}}%
creditloss (Stage 1) BE(E-RR) 1 (1 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss not Eﬁﬁgﬁﬁgﬁﬁw EERE
creditimpaired (Stage 2) (REERE)
(BZRRR) M 1 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss credit B E2 HIBHEEEE
impaired (Stage 3) (BiEERE)
(%EI‘% 129) - - - -
Total transfer between stages PR e rETs EJr - - - -
Impact on year end expected credit loss of i W ERBEEBRE
exposures transferred between stages during ”‘fﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁ?ﬁfu | \Eﬁ B
the year VwE - 7 - 7
Movements due to changes in credit risk EERREE | mED 1 12 - 13
Write-offs ke - - (28) (28)
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\§+=AH
=t-H 13 43 60 116

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE-_Z—+HF+_-_A=1+—HHILFE
Individually Collectively
impaired impaired Total
& Bl % & HERE et
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHT FH T F#T
1 January 2017 —E—+tH—H—H 317 - 317
Reversal of provision B & B O] _ _ _
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+—-A
=+—H 317 - 317
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18 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

In general, interest receivables are considered as default when they
are overdue by over 90 days. As at 31 December 2018, interest
receivables of HK$616,000 was default under lifetime ECL and a
provision of HK$60,000 was provided.

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL is measured
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from
default events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2")
but not yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based
on lifetime ECL. In general, when loans receivable or its related
installments are overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase
in credit risk. During the year ended 31 December 2018, total
provision of HK$14,000 under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on
assessment from ECL model.

As at 31 December 2017, interest receivables of HK$317,000 were
individually impaired. These were related to a number of third party
customers for whom the directors are of the view that the collection
of these interest receivables were not probable. All these impaired
interest receivables aged over 90 days.

All the interest receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the maturity date, are current.

B O F AR M ()

18 FEUF 2 (%)

—MEmE - A B BB KA - B
WHERRAEN R-_ZE—N\FE+_A
=+—H ' EURFE 6160008 TR 2 HTE
HEEEBETEEY  WE 600005
TR B o

HRIEEEREBRBVRERUAREER
S EEEEM((E—RERDMNER ﬁ
HEEEBIEERARRI2MEANA L2
i%&%%#mﬁWEWEWETEEm
LB E - B VR EREEHANEER
REEEm((EoREDETREAERE
BRE BEHEEEBRE2HESEER
B2 —MmE - WEKERSKEAE
%\%Hmé%m% EERBR ARG o
HE-_Z2—N\F+=-A=1+— Eﬁif
mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂm&m FE—FEER
N2 —BEER A B B 140008 L E R A B
RARERPIGR -

R—ZZE—+HFE+-_A=+—H0 A%
317,000 T H B FI S 2 B RRE - 2%
CHEEERATANEMEKEZEE
WHENZZE=FEFPEH - TEZS
BB E YT B R EBBo0H °

RIEEIH B - BIREBRN A EKAE
HERNE] -
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19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19

RECEIVABLES

FENRIE - REREMEKRRIA

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Prepayments TEfT5RIE
Deposits ok

Tax reserve certificate L H

Other receivables H e W IR

BNFE B2
HAth [l Y R IR
" IEREE D

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Less: non-current portion
mEE D

Current portion

The Group’s deposits and other receivables are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

20 REPOSSESSED ASSETS 20
During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collaterals held as security. The nature and carrying value of these

assets held as at 31 December are summarised as follows:

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FRET
3,669 1,884
1,631 2,761
3,187 -
15 15
8,502 4,660
- (1,341)
8,502 3319

AEE RS MEAM R FIRAETTAHE -

PrB e ME b U IRIS BE B A H TR
A ©

BIREEE
FR - AEERGERFFERRONER RN

BEE REMBFEERT-_A=1T—8H
RMEE MEREEMR AT

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
29,094 1,778

Repossessed properties — residential properties AU B9 3 — (T E W 2
The estimated market value of the repossessed assets held by

the Group as at 31 December 2018 was HK$45,000,000 (2017:
HK$3,500,000). It comprises properties in respect of which the Group

has acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or

voluntary actions by the properties concerned) for release in full or

in part of the obligations of borrowers.
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 21 BERBESSEYNERBER
DEPOSIT
(a) Cash at bank and on hand (@) BTRFERSE

As at 31 December
BR+=—HB=+—H

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 60,813 13,445
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash at bank and on AEBRTERFEREMEREAER
hand are denominated in the following currencies: AT E®EE :

Hong Kong dollars BT 60,763 13,387
Renminbi AR 50 58
60,813 13,445

(b) Pledged deposit (b) EEBER

Pledged deposit held at bank EEMIBITHER 8,690 4,750
As at 31 December 2018, HK$8,690,000 (31 December 2017: RZE—N\F+ZA=+—"H B
HK$4,750,000) pledged deposit held at a bank was used to 3 4R 17 77 708,690,000 7T (= F
secure a bank loan facility (Note 24(a)). The Group's pledged —tF+ZA=1+—H8 :4750000%
deposit is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. 7o) AERITE @ E 2 =R (M

24(2)) ~AEEE BT R ABITATE ©
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 22 IREFSBHEE

All deferred income tax assets of the Group are expected to be
recovered after more than 12 months.

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

BHAKEMBRENEHEESNBG
+ B &RKE -

ELEFNBHREENFANES (W KRG K
Al — R AE R ARG RIEE) T

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Provisions
for collective
impairment
Accelerated tax of loans
depreciation receivable Total
BWER
IERERE HEBRERE Bat
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHTT FHIT T
At 1 January 2017 RZFE—tF—H—H 303 503 806
Credited/(charged) to the REefizEalER
consolidated statement of FA(F0BRR)
comprehensive income 13 (92) (79)

At 31 December 2017 as originally
presented
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9

At 1 January 2018 as restated

Charged to the
consolidated statement of

RZZE—+F+=A
=—t+t—H (&)

BN B RS £
FoRMTE

R-ZE-N\F—H—H
(B=E75))

RE e KER
OBR

comprehensive income

At 31 December 2018 IS

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$502,000 (2017: HK$505,000) in respect of
losses amounting to HK$3,042,000 (2017: HKS$3,061,000) that can be
carried forward indefinitely against future taxable income.
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316 411 727

- 168 168
316 579 895
(148) (165) (313)
168 414 582

78 RJ BE A5 4B 1R FE AR )it ) 3R A Y
TREE - RIBL AR Iy = R AR T R
BHREE -

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H8 Hr£H
WEFERPEE W B R RER
iU A B B 183,042,000 T (Z & —+
F 1 3,061,0008 70) BRELEF ST EE
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23 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EEtERAREHMESTRIE

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H

Accruals fEsHE M 3,081 2010
Other payables H b e3R8 1,391 1,027
Total Bt 4,472 3,037
Accruals and other payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FEET & A K H A fEft FRIBLAE TTETHE ©
24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 RITREMENK
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: RITREMERINET :

As at 31 December
R+t=—HA=+-—H

Bank loans — secured (Note (a)) RITER-—BER (HE@E) 50,000 31,000
Bank loans — unsecured (Note (b)) RITER—EER (FHEE®) 11,970 -
Other borrowings - secured (Note (c)) EffER—B &R (M) 234,934 64,370
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMIERREE 296,904 95,370
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24 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

146

Bank loans - secured
As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank loans of

HK$50,000,000 (2017: HK$31,000,000), were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, repayable in one year and bore average
interest rate of 6.33% (2017: 5.15%) per annum. The bank
loans were obtained from an independent third party bank
and were secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans
receivable of a subsidiary of the Company with carrying value
of HK$136,485,000 (2017: HK$90,898,000); (ii) a floating charge
on certain bank accounts of a subsidiary of the Company with
carrying value of HK$8,690,000 (2017: HK$4,750,000); and (iii) a
corporate guarantee from the Company.

Bank loans - unsecured
As at 31 December 2018, the unsecured bank loans of

HK$11,970,000 (2017: Nil), were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, repayable in one year and bore average interest rate of
6.27% (2017: Nil) per annum.

Other borrowings - secured
Other borrowings of HK$234,934,000 (2017: HK$64,370,000),

which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, repayable
in one year and bore interest rates ranging from 5.875% to
6.5% (2017: 6.75%) per annum. Such other borrowings were
obtained from independent third party licensed money
lenders and were secured by the pledge of certain properties
mortgaged to a subsidiary of the Company for loans granted
to its respective customers and a corporate guarantee
from the Company. The fair value of these properties were
HK$571,600,000 (2017: HK$198,530,000) as at 31 December
2018.

24 RITREMER (B)

(a)

(b)

(c)

RITER-—FBEH
RZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H8"  BiK
R 1T B 750,000,000/ T (Z 2 —+
A 131,000,000 7T) LAE TR E ~ A
R—FRNEERIZFHFFE633%
ZE—+F515%) 5T B BT
ERTIABIE=FRTEIG - WA
THEEEER - VAR A —HEHE
N &) BE T 8 413648500078 7T (=&
—+ 4 1 90,898,000 7T) Y & T FE UL
BEFUREIRL : () AAE—EHBA
AR E {E £ 8,690,0008 7L (Z T —+
F 1 4,750000870) W& TIRITERP
FEIRS R (i) AR AR A BIELR o

RITER—EEH
R=_ZE—N\F+—A=+—8 &K
HERTTE R 11,970,000 T (ZE—+
FT)UABILHE AR —FAE
BRNEEHERNER621% (Z T —+t
F:T)FHB -

HiER-—BEH

H th 8 $0 234,934,000 T (ZFE—+
F 1 64,370,000 70) B TTEHE - B
—FREN - RFEFENF5875% %
65% (ZZF—+HF :675%) 5T 8 ° 7%
CHMERKREBBLEZ FHFEK
BEA BARARASELPREER
MEFRFARA—HEHBRGNE
T ERARRE R ERERT -
NZE-NEFE+_A=+—8 " %%
) 3 8 A F 1B £571,600,0005 7T (=
T —+ 45 :198530000/87T) °
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25 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 25 REREER
(a) Cash generated from operations () REXEKFELERE
Year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=+—RHLEFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before income tax B 15 55 A g 87,631 73,997
Adjustments for: BB IEEL AL
Loan interest income (Note 6) BERFBHBA (H5E6) (124,277) (103,479)
Bank interest income (Note 6) RITHFIBHA (HI5E6) (14) 37)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (Mrax7) 559 415
Interest income from convertible A R IR R B A B A
promissory note (Note 10) (MF5E10) - (22,432)
Loss on disposal of property, LEDE  HE R
plant and equipment REHER 21 -
Gain from early redemption of convertible 12 R BB AT R AR A L AR Y
promissory note (Note 10) Wz (BEaE10) - (6,689)
Interest expenses B X 12,463 14,159
Fair value change and loss on early redemption $T4 &R TEMNAFEES
on derivative financial instrument MIRREREE - 15,306
Reversal of impairment losses — net (Note 8) JREE B EF 5 (M5E8) (9,679) (788)
Exchange gains, net bE 3 W2 5 R - (2,377)
Changes in working capital: EEECED:
Loans receivable FENE K (231,160) 131,366
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FBNFUIA « 12 M E b FEUR
A (1,246) 870
Accruals and other payables FERTE B R E Ab R 5B 1,258 (64)

Cash (used in)/generated from operations LEEE (A FEE
e (264,444) 100,247
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25 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 25 MEREEN (F)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) METHFEEEENHER

financing activities

Total

Loan from Loan from liabilities

Bank and arelated the ultimate from

other company holding financing

borrowings (Note 29(b)) company activities

2]

RITR ARER B mMEEE

Hipam (FfzE29(b)) ARER =Rig bl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHTT FHT FHET TAT
As at 1 January 2017 MZZE—+F

—H—H 396,074 - 229,192 625,266

Cash flows Heng (300,704) - (247,188) (547,892)

Interest expense E=N=a - - 5216 5216

Foreign exchange movement  YNE & &) - - 12,780 12,780
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZT—tF

+=—A=+—8 95,370 - - 95,370

Cash flows Reng 201,534 50,000 - 251,534
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF

+=—A=+—H 296,904 50,000 - 346,904
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 BgA

Authorised share capital EER A

Equivalent
Number  Nominal value nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary of ordinary

shares shares shares
EBERYE EEREE SERZEHE
HKS HKS

BT BT

At31December 2017, 1January 2018 R-ZE—-tF+-A=+—-H"

and 31 December 2018 “E-N\¥-A-HK
“E-N\FtZA=+-H 10,000,000,000 001 100,000,000
Issued share capital ORITRA
Number of
issued shares Amount
ERITROBE -]
HKS
7B TT
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 R=_ZB—+tHF+=-A=+—-H"
and 31 December 2018 —E-\F¥—-A—HE
—B2-NF+=A=+—H 400,000,000 4,000,000
27 RESERVES 27 f#fE
The amount of the Group’s reserve and the movements therein AEEBXAFERBAEFENRFHRESERLE
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated FE NI HREE 73 ENEHEREHRK -
statement of changes in equity on page 73 of the financial
statements.
The Group capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value REE 2 EARFEERBARAARRSG £H
of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company AMEAAABINELNBRAREEFER
pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the Listing of the Company’s TFEBBANANDETIEASBZRNDZ
share, over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in A -

exchange thereof.
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28 COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee
The Group leases its office under non-cancellable operating lease

agreements. The lease terms are 2 years, and the lease agreements
are renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

28 RIE

REHEARE-ASEEESABEA
AEBRETATHHENELHERZEE
HEpnzE -HEFHAME  HEHZEA
RERERKIRTSEESEE -

BETTHBEEERE  AXREHEEE
BT

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

Not later than one year —F R
One to five years —EhRF

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment as at 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Blossom Spring (incorporated in BVI),
which is the ultimate holding company of the Group and owns
75% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 25% of the shares are
widely held. The ultimate controlling party is Ms. Jin.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
this consolidated financial statement, the following is a summary of
the significant transactions carried out between the Group and its
related parties in the ordinary course of business during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, and balances arising from
related party transactions as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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2018 2017
—E-N\fF —T—+4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
1,358 4019

- 1358

1,358 5377

AEER -_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLE
EABERERAZ(ZT—+F : |) o

29 BABA RS

7N 2 [# | Blossom Spring (R EBR LB E
LA S2) #5 4l - Blossom Spring 4 78 £ [
BRRERAR  WERARRE 75%HI R °
HER250RMAIBZHTIA o &&EH T
Aot -

BRAAHTBEHREREMBIFERENR
S REEFRIN - T AR SR B B E R
REBEEZE—N\FERZE—+tF+=A
Tt HUHEFEEEBFESBREPETH
BARSG UERZZE—N\FERZZT—+
F+ A+ RABEBARITEEN
ko
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29 BAEES X5 ()
(a) RRERAFAFNEXIHRER

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) Interest expenses and loan from the ultimate
holding company

2018 2017
—E2-N\fF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Shareholder facility IR R E 5K
At 1 January »n—H—H - 229,192
Interest expense (Note 10) FEFZ (M5E10) - 5216
Principal and interest paid e REfHE - (247,188)
Exchange realignment (Note 10) b H & AR (Ms10) - 12,780

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - -

On 21 July 2015, Blossom Spring and the Company had
entered into a shareholder facility agreement (the “Facility”)
pursuant to which Blossom Spring has agreed to grant to
the Company an unsecured facility in the amount of up to
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$235,200,000)
for a term of three years and bearing an interest rate of 3.0%
per annum on the outstanding principal amount from time to
time for the purpose of funding the Company’s purchase of
the Note.

The Facility is a back-to-back financing with a limited recourse
in which the Company does not have to repay the Facility
unless the Company receives payment from Quark.

Upon the early redemption of the Note from Quark on 22
September 2017, the Company repaid the outstanding
principal and all accrued but unpaid interest due to the
ultimate holding company in full on 4 October 2017.

R—ZE—HRHFLA=-+—H "
Blossom Spring 2748 2 R AT A IR B 5K
i (TE ) » #utk » Blossom Spring
ERZAARARRTEERER €
B A 2= AR 200,0000007T (#8
B F49235,200,00078T) - BEI=F -
W AR REERSHEIRFTFE30%
AR CUARAREERERREHES -

ERR-AEHEREYMBERE
R B U BRIEA 2 BIUEI Quark
W BRIRNARBABEEN -

Quarkk R ZZE—+F N A+ -HIR
FHEREER  ARFERZZE—t
FHANEHBHREELSRFEER
RAMAEELASBRAEET R
FE -
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Interest expenses on loans from a related

company

29 BAEES X5 ()

(b) BT ERRTEBAX

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=t—HLFE

Interest expenses on loans from a related
company - Evercrest Wealth Management
Limited ("EWML") (TEWML])

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group

obtained an unsecured revolving loan facility from EWML,

a related company of the Group where Ms. Jin is the sole

ultimate beneficial owner, with a facility limit of $50,000,000

(2017: Nil). The loan is denominated in Hong Kong dollars,

repayable in one year and bears fixed interest rate of 6.5% per

annum (2017: Nil). As at 31 December 2018, the Group utilised

HK$50,000,000 (2017: Nil) of the loan facility.

(c) Indemnity from a controlling shareholder

Ms. Jin has entered into a deed of indemnity with the Group to
personally indemnify the Company for, among of other things,
damages, legal costs and liabilities in connection with the
legal proceedings as described in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DR ERA B —
R EERARAQA

(c)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET

733 -

BHE_Z-N\FE+-_A=+—HILF
£ ANEEEARNEEBB D F EWML
EESERFBERERHRE  mekt
BE—SRETHEEAN  REREA
500000007t (ZE—tF &) - B
FHABTLEHE - ER—FREERE
BT FENE65%(ZT—+44 )&t
B -RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H"
N E B B A E 3 & 50,000,000 7T
(ZF—tF )

ZERBERNVEE

SR LT EARFEFT L BERE - AE
ABEARRERBE  EheFERZE
REFERNEBEZERE EREBAR
BE(E GRS ImRM 32 m) -
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B ORI IR R M ()

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 29 EABEA RS (1)
(d) Key management compensation (d FEEE ASHM
The remuneration of executive Directors of the Company and AARHITEERAMEZERA
other members of key management is shown below: B2 HMMATFR -

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—HLEFE

Salaries, benefits, bonus and other Eac A = N[N A
remuneration N B Ath Bl & 4,324 3,610
Pension costs RIRE KA 90 80
4,414 3,690
(e) Remuneration paid to a related party (e) XA+ FRAMF 2 %

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLFE

Salaries and pension costs paid to the M—RBARARES BB
spouse of a director of the Company YT RRKREKA 252 252
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30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30 AATMBRARRBEEELE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position of the Company AR B B R OR &
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
=2 FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIMKE 444,795 444,795
Amount due from subsidiaries FE U B B~ B FR B 133,547 138,468
Total non-current assets ERBEEEE 578,342 583,263
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable H {th jE e zkIE 3,187 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReLkRESEFEEY 161 173
Total current asset RBEEHLE 3,348 173
Total assets EEHE 581,690 583,436
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners P UNETE ZSN
of the Company EiaEE
Share capital N 4,000 4,000
Other reserves H M iEE @) 566,591 566,591
Retained earnings REB AT @ 6,563 12,685
Total equity B 577,154 583,276
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REEE
Tax payable FERLIR 4,522 -
Accruals JEETE R 14 160
Total current liabilities REBAEEAE 4,536 160
Total liabilities EEH8E 4,536 160
Total equity and liabilities ERRABEEH 581,690 583,436
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved KRB BHRAREESEN T —NIF
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2019 and was signed on its At HE#ETIETRIUTALIRE
behalf. BE
Ms.Wang Yao TE &z + Ms. Jin Xiaoqin € EE & +
Director 2% Director %
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30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30 AT BARRRRBEEEE (8)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

e ARFRBED

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

Balance at 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners

Dividend paid relating to 2016

Dividend paid relating to 2017

Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31 December 2017

Representing
Reserves
Proposed final dividend

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balance at 1 January 2018

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners

Dividend paid relating to 2017

Dividend paid relating to 2018

Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31 December 2018

Representing

Reserves
Proposed final dividend

Balance at 31 December 2018

R-Z—tF-A-HZ&HK
FRESRARE

HEFTANKS
ER-_ZT-RFEMAERE
ER-_Z—LFENRA

HEEBANRZAE
(ERRNERRER)

R=—ZE—tHF+=-HA=+—8
ZREER

HIATIER
ki
EEAHRE

R=ZB—t&+=A=+—H
Z R

R-B-NF-A-B2#&&K
FRGERARE

EEFBANRS
FR—_Z—tFEMRE
FR—Z-\FEMERE

HEEFANRZHE
(EBRESRER)

R-2-NF¥+=-A=+—-H
Z &R

IEATNIER
X
EEAHKRE

R-Z2-N\F¥+=-A=t+—-H
ZEEER

The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s share, over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in

exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may make distributions
to its shareholders out of the capital reserves in certain circumstances.

Share Capital Retained

premium reserve earnings Total
BRGEE BEARRE REEF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHIT FAT
122,176 444,415 19,742 586,333
- - 20,143 20,143

- - (19,600) (19,600)

- - (7,600) (7,600)

- - (27,200) (27,200)
122,176 444,415 12,685 579,276
122,176 432,415 12,685 567,276
- 12,000 - 12,000
122,176 444,415 12,685 579,276
122,176 444,415 12,685 579,276
- - 14,278 14,278

- - (12,000) (12,000)

- - (8,400) (8,400)

- - (20,400) (20,400)
122,176 444,415 6,563 573,154
122,176 432,415 6,563 561,154
- 12,000 - 12,000
122,176 444,415 6,563 573,154

MEAELNARRERFBIENARRRRD LA
ARRRIBEEARENBERRNEEFENATEB
AR R AIRER E A R a1 TRIRR (A BB 805 -

REFMEFSRFE  RAARAETERTEBERR
REBRRER DR
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 31 EEFEFIRFIZS
(a) Directors’s and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESRAR M FH N
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive of KRR BREFREFOHS
the Company is set out below: U
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BEz-_F—-N\F+=-A=+—
HIEEE :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services
as a director whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRESARLAINBLAIXBREBARBNC ADEUME

Discretionary
Fees Salary bonuses  Pensioncosts  Other benefits Total
ne e RE#L BRERA 7 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn ThERL Thn TEn TEn
Executive Directors BiTES
Ms. Wang Yao THELT 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Xiaogin SEENT 600 - - 18 - 618
Mr.Ng Yiu Lun () mEREEND - 250 - 8 - 258
1,200 250 - 44 - 1,49
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Man Yiu Kivong, Nick NRRTE 240 - - - - 20
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXfT 20 - - - - 240
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis BRBIE 240 - - - - 240
720 - - - - 720
Note: B3
(i) Mr. Ng Yiu Lun was appointed as an executive director on 30 July 2018. 0} ERBEER_FT-—NFLA=1+BE
Salaries and pension costs of approximately HK$360,000 paid to him EERNTER -ERERANTESA
before the appointment as an executive director had not been included TR E S MR K E KK 49360,000
in the above analysis. BT ARBIEE LA -
During the year, no director has waived any emoluments (2017: FAN - BEEEHETCAMNS (ZF
Nil). —tF ) e
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 31 EEEMRAZE ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’s and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRABNEMH (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-_Z2—tH+=-A=t—
A LR
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services
as a director whether of the company orits subsidiary undertaking
(FREZA et :
Fees Salary Pension costs  Other benefits Total
ik i i TEL & y Ef iR
HKS'000 HK$'000
ThL TAL

Executive Directors YiTES
Ms. Wang Yao THLT 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Xiaogn SEENT 600 - - 18 - 618

1,200 - - 36 - 1,236
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick SRR E 240 - - - - %0
Dr.Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis ERBITE 40 - - - - %0

70 - - - - 70
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

158

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement

benefits or termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for

making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no consideration

was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available director’s services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities

with such directors
There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour

of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in Note 29(b), no significant transactions,

arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

31

EEERIRFIS ()

(b) EEEREBBIER
W B E BN AEFE A UER S & UER
ERABNAEREN (T2t
FE) o

O BEERBOR=HRAOE
=t
BHE_ZT-/\F+_A=+—HIF
€ WEmEEERERE=TRER
B F=7TEEKRE(CZZ—+L
FE) o

d) BRLES  ZRszABS
PEZSESEHECERA
ERAMENR  ERRREM
xBER
B R A F RN F A EAA B I
BB ZEGEAERBLZEE
FFMBZERRYBEANER £
ERREMRS -

() EBRXS  RHFRANTE

A
BRI EE200) TR EE SN HEAF

ERSINFEAERFRE - AR W&
RIVEMBERAEEEBEEBHEAL
AEFHEEARS (BEREKXEH
BIMEARS  ZHREH -
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32 LITIGATION

In July 2014, an Independent third party (the “Plaintiff’) filed a claim
in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong against
one of the customers (the “Customer”) of Global International
Credit Limited ("GICL"), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as first defendant and GICL as the second defendant,
alleging that, in 2013, GICL had not acted in good faith in entering
into a mortgage financing arrangement with the Customer since
GICL had actual or constructive notice of that borrower's intent
to defraud creditors and/or lack of good faith (the “Litigation”).
Accordingly, the Plaintiff sought a declaration that the mortgage
provided by the Customer to GICL (the “Mortgage”) is void and be
set aside, the registration of the Mortgage at the Land Registry be
vacated, together with damages to be assessed, and interest and
costs to be paid.

On 17 December 2014, the Customer had been adjudged bankrupt
by the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong. After
consideration of the collectability of this loan with reference to the
validity of the Mortgage due to the Litigation and the creditability
of the Customer, an individual impairment of the outstanding loans
receivable in the amount of HK$8,800,000 and the related interest
receivables of HK$232,000 had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the prior years. As such,
the amount due from the customer included in loans and interest
receivables had been fully impaired.

The trial of the Litigation was conducted in May 2018 and on 26
October 2018, GICL received a judgement from the High Court of
Hong Kong concluded that the Plaintiff's claims are to be dismissed
and declared that the Mortgage is valid, subsisting and enforceable.

Accordingly, a reversal of provision for impairment on loans
receivable and interest receivables of HK$8,800,000 and HK$232,000
respectively, was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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B O F AR M ()

HiE/N

—E-NFELRA —2BUE=S (RS
ADRERSFERFEFEEL AR RHE
E2EMBARRKEERARAR (IR
EFEDHN—R2FEFP(EF] FRE I
SN RBRHEE(ERFE -WEA) RE
HE ERRREER T =—FAHT
PRI —ERBU B LS W EEHITE
ERRRREEER EMERLERE LHE
EMABEZLERABBFRERAR
jzﬁ)%zﬁuﬁz(hﬁ*’ﬂ) At - REATK

EEPRRRERRHENZRE ([1RIB])
%?ﬁix&&ﬂ%ﬁf’ﬁ@ BEH RIS S
ERER  AAEBRERES IHMER
TR

RZZE—NF+=—F++tH BEFHEES
BEERRENEEHERE - &5 % E
HETREIRRE WS ERDNEERN
RBNESEAREFNERREE  AH
8,800,000 7% 7T & 7 Yz B F& U & SR8 51 (B
Ko & U #E BB ) 80232,00078 7L B R @ T F
ERAGHERERERER - Bt 5T A
WE R & EWF B0 ERE P RIEEEH
A e

FAMBRAMER T N\FRALET M

R-ZFE-N\E+A= +/\EI f%ﬂ:f)?ﬂﬁl
AEERFARROHR - RE J?i/\

mﬁ“$%laﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ BER
SEHIBNIT ©

Ft - EUE R ERF BB E R ERE
73 5118,800,000 78 7T & 232,000 E TER = Z
—N\F+_A=ZF+—HILFENEHES
”&ﬁ?&%q]ﬁgpu °©
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A FHMBEE

RESULTS E

Revenue LN 124,277 103479 130,295 124322 107,767

Profit and total comprehensive income A A JE ML )G E 5 F
for the year attributable to owners FERALTE 68,413 63,006 76,543 47,180 35,552

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets BERE 1,105,430 799,045 1,291,745 1319654 899,399
Total liabilities BELE 359,954 100,730 629236 708,088 324,213
Total equity T 745,476 698315 662,509 611,566 575,186
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